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As the Catholic Bishops of the Archdiocese of Oklahoma City and of the Diocese of
Tulsa, our thoughts and prayers are with all of our elected state senators and representa-

tives as they debate many bills which have not only political and economic, but also
moral dimensions. We are grateful for legislative support of measures to protect

unborn children and to promote the protection of marriage as a foundational institution
in our society. The pending legislation regulating immigration also has a moral dimen-

sion.
Immigration reform is primarily the responsibility of our federal officials. That
being said, any reform measures at the state level ought to begin with a commit-

ment to respect the fundamental dignity of every human person, not merely
citizens or those who are in our country and state with the proper docu-

mentation. We are concerned also that these immigration bills will
have the intentional or unintentional effect of instilling fear in
an already vulnerable population.

We would like to begin by saying that Catholic social teach-
ing makes it very clear that, “Respect for the human person
dictates that “everyone should look upon his neighbor (with-
out any exception) as ‘another self.” No legislation can
undo the reality that every human being is our
brother and “The duty of making oneself a
neighbor to others and actively serving them
becomes even more urgent when it
involves the disadvantaged, in whatev-
er area this may be. “As you did it to
one of the least of these my
brethren, you did it to me.”
Christ said, “When I was hun-
gry you fed me.” That is a
dictate that cannot be
ignored, or in any way
mitigated by human

law.
While the Catholic Church

recognizes the right of govern-
ments to protect their sovereign
borders, it also recognizes the

principle of solidarity and that we
are all persons created by God. We

steadfastly believe that, since
everyone is created by God, human
dignity and human rights are not

commodities to be allocated according
to nationality.

The struggle for just immigration laws
is complex but necessary. It is our prayer that

Congress will enact comprehensive, fair and equitable immigration reform, which
will (1) acknowledge our dependence on undocumented workers, (2) provide a living

wage and decent working conditions and (3) offer a path to legal status which will bring these undocument-
ed persons out of the shadows, where they are so easily preyed upon by human traffickers and other unscrupulous

profiteers. We pray that the decisions of our elected state officials will be guided by a search for the common good of all and not on
narrow economic or political interests which fail to protect and promote human dignity, family unity and children.

In short, we want to reiterate that the Catholic Church will always obey the command of Christ who tells us, “When I was
hungry you fed me” because in the poor we see the face of Christ Himself. We will continue to do this for all of the poor regardless
of race, status, religion or creed. We pray that our legislators will both remember and apply this same command in all delibera-
tions and debates.
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The Church is the Body of Christ
and so shares in his essential
holiness. This is worth pondering
further!  The Church was born from
the wounded side of Christ as he
hung upon the cross. (Jn. 19:34). He
is the Head, we are his members.
Together, Head and members, Christ
and his Church, we are the Body of
Christ. It is simply impossible to
separate Christ from his Church.

Through  the  Sacrament  of
Baptism we are initiated into the
Church and so participate in the
Church’s holiness. We draw divine
life from the Church and are
nourished by the Church as by a
loving mother. Baptism into the
Church truly begins our initiation
into the holiness of God! Through
faith and Baptism we become living
members of the Body of Christ. (1
Cor. 12:1). We enter into an intimate
communion with the Body of the
Risen Lord through the Holy Spirit
who makes us living stones in this
holy temple. (1 Pt. 2:5). Baptized
into Christ’s death, we die to sin. We
rise victorious with Christ from the
waters of Baptism, to begin a new
life, sharing in the power of his
resurrection through the gift of
his Holy Spirit who comes to dwell
within us.

The sacraments are the special
channels of grace, established by
Christ in his Church, that enable us
to live this divine life. “The seven

sacraments touch all the stages
and all the important moments of
Christian life: they give birth and
increase, healing and mission to the
Christian’s life of faith.” (Catechism
of the Catholic Church, 1210). The
Sacraments of Initiation (Baptism,
Confirmation and the Eucharist) lay
the foundation of the Christian life.
They incorporate us into Christ and
the Church and equip us with the
supernatural grace, the virtues and
spiritual gifts necessary to grow
toward full maturity in Christ, that
is, to grow in holiness.

When we begin to recognize our
high calling, we see how utterly
unworthy of our dignity it is to settle
for a life of moral or spiritual medi-
ocrity and shallow religiosity. The
call to Baptism is the call to heroic
sanctity, the call to become a saint;
nothing less. “Be perfect as your
heavenly Father is perfect.” (Mt.
5:48).

Our challenge is to embrace and
proclaim anew this high standard of
ordinary Christian living. Holiness
is not the prerogative of an elite few
in the Church. It is the fundamental
vocation which every Christian re-
ceives in Baptism. As the Second
Vatican Council clearly teaches, “All
Christians in any state and walk of
life are called to the fullness of
Christian life and to the perfection
of charity.” (LG, 40).

This is the essence of holiness:

perfect charity. To be holy is to love.
It is to love perfectly as Christ loves.
This perfect love of God and neigh-
bor is beyond our mere human
strength to realize but not beyond
our hope, “because God’s love has
been poured into our hearts through
the Holy Spirit which has been given
to us.” (Rom. 5:5). Pope Benedict
writes about this divine source of
love in his first encyclical letter.
“Love of God and love of neighbor
are thus inseparable, they form a
single commandment. Both live from
the love of God who has loved us
first. No longer is it a question, then
of a ‘commandment’ imposed from
without and calling for the impossi-
ble, but rather of a freely-bestowed
experience of love from within, a
love which by its very nature must
then be shared with others. Love
grows through love.” (God is Love,
18). Holiness, too, grows as love is
put into action.
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“Put out
into the

deep and
lower

your nets
for a
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Luke 5:4
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Archbishop Coakley’s Calendar
The following events are part of Archbishop Coakley’s

official calendar.

Monday, April 4 — Confirmation, Holy Cross Church,
Madill, 7 p.m.
Tuesday, April 5 — Confirmation, Good Shepherd
Church, Marietta, 7 p.m.
Wednesday, April 6 — St. Mary Church, Ardmore, 7
p.m.
Thursday, April 7 — All School Mass, Bishop
McGuinness Catholic High School, 9:40 a.m.
Friday, April 8 — Confirmation, Sts. Peter and Paul
Church, Kingfisher, 6 p.m.
Saturday, April 9 — Confirmation, St. Joseph Church,
Norman, 5:30 p.m.

Sunday, April 10 — Scout Mass, Catholic Pastoral
Center, 4 p.m.
Wednesday, April 13 — Confirmation, Sts. Peter and
Paul Church, Hobart, 6 p.m.
Thursday, April 14 — Confirmation, Church of St.
Mary, Ponca City, 6:30 p.m.
Friday, April 15 — Catholic Pastoral Center Staff on
Retreat, 9 a.m. to 3 p.m.
Saturday, April 16 — ACCW Women of Achievement
Mass, Church of the Epiphany of the Lord, 10 a.m.
Sunday, April 17 — Palm Sunday Mass at Our Lady’s
Cathedral, 10 a.m.
Tuesday, April 19 — Priests Prayer Day, noon
Tuesday, April 19 — Chrism Mass, Our Lady’s
Cathedral, 6 p.m.
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Relics of Saint Damien to
Visit Oklahoma City April 5

OKLAHOMA CITY — The Archdiocese of Oklahoma City will host the
relics of St. Damien of Molokai at the Catholic Pastoral Center on April 5.
The relics are scheduled to be at the CPC, 7510 NW Expressway, for the
11:30 a.m. Mass. Archbishop Eusebius J. Beltran, Emeritus, will celebrate
Mass. All priests of the Archdiocese are invited to concelebrate.

Following Mass, the relics will be on display for veneration beginning
at 1 p.m. until 4 p.m. There will be a 15-minute prayer service at the
start of every hour, 1 p.m., 2 p.m., 3 p.m. and 4 p.m. After the 4 p.m. prayer
service, the relic will move to Tulsa.

Everyone in the Archdiocese is welcome to the Mass and veneration.
St. Damien was a missionary priest of the Congregation of the Sacred

Hearts of Jesus and Mary. He served in Hawaii from 1864 to 1889, work-
ing for the last 16 years with the quarantined Hansen’s patients, more
commonly known as lepers.

For the 16 years he served the lepers he was pastor, doctor and
advocate for the conditions of his people. In his time there he built two
orphanages and improved the water and food supplies and housing.

St. Damien eventually contracted leprosy himself and refused treat-
ment because it would cause him to have to leave his people. Pope
Benedict XVI declared him a saint on Oct. 11, 2009. He is considered a
“martyr of charity” and is the ninth person who lived and worked and died
in the United States to be named a Catholic saint. St. Damien’s feast day
is May 10.

More about St. Damien can be found on the Diocese of Honolulu web-
site at www.fatherdamien.com. St. Damien of Molokai 

Catholic Requiem To Be Performed at OCU Ceremony
The Gothic contours of a landmark Oklahoma

City church will reverberate with a musical
masterwork of epic proportions as 350 singers and
orchestral musicians join forces for the rarely
heard Requiem by Hector Berlioz. Musicians from
Oklahoma City University will perform the work
at 4 p.m. Sunday, April 3 at First Presbyterian
Church, 1001 NW 25th St. at Western Avenue.
Admission is free and open to the public.

The event is part of the inauguration cele-
bration of Robert Henry, who will be installed as
17th president of Oklahoma City University on
April 6. The performance is also featured on the
First Presbyterian’s 2011 Kemp Concert Series.

“This concert has been three years in the plan-
ning,” said Mark Parker, dean of OCU’s Bass
School of Music. “Many great works of art have
attempted to shed light on the eternal questions of
human experience. Berlioz’s Requiem may well be
the pinnacle of artistic expression, examining
questions of life and death, judgment day and the
afterlife.”

Randi Von Ellefson, director of choral activi-
ties at the Bass School, will conduct the Requiem
and give a free pre-concert talk at 3 p.m.

“It’s probably the most colossal setting of any

requiem, ever,” Ellefson said. “When people expe-
rience this piece, they are simply transported into
the seraphic — really light and beautiful. It is so
other-worldly, so transporting, and really shakes
you from your foundations as a human being.”

Berlioz’s 10-movement Requiem (Grande
Messe des Morts, Op. 5) derives its text from the
traditional Latin Requiem Mass. The piece was
composed in 1837 as a memorial for the soldiers
who died in the July 1830 Revolution.

It was to become Berlioz’s favorite composi-
tion. He wrote to a friend, “If I were threatened
with the destruction of the whole of my works save
one, I should crave mercy for the Messe des
Morts.”

Created for the cavernous St. Louis of the
Invalides Cathedral in Paris, Berlioz wrote the
score for a massive chorus and orchestra, includ-
ing a dozen timpani individually tuned to play
thunder chords along with four choirs of surround-
sound brass.

“Even the dullest minds,” the poet Heinrich
Heine said of the first performance, in 1837, “were
carried away by the force of the genius.”

Berlioz  enjoyed  contrasting  thunderous,
crashing sections with periods of quiet. Only one

vocal soloist is called for, near the end. A tenor,
echoed by the chorus, sings against a halo of four
solo violins.

On April 3, the featured soloist will be tenor
Jeffrey Picón. A member of the OCU voice faculty,
Picón is a concert and opera singer in a diverse
selection of repertoire. Highlights of recent
seasons include his New York City Opera debut in
performances of Carmen, Cendrillon, Madama
Butterfly and Tosca, and touring with Jamie
Bernstein, daughter of Leonard Bernstein, as
tenor soloist on an orchestral “Bernstein on
Broadway” program.

The concert’s late afternoon start time will
highlight First Presbyterian Church’s dozens of
historic stained glass windows, filling the sanctu-
ary with color and light.

The work will feature more than 200 singers
from the Bass School, and two dozen basses and
tenors from Canterbury Choral Society. Ellefson
and Judith Willoughby are rehearsing the singers.
Rehearsals  of  the  massive  100-piece  OCU
Symphony Orchestra are under the direction of
Benjamin Nilles.

For more information, call (405) 208-5274.
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‘The Way of the Cross’ to Unfold on OU Campus
NORMAN — On Good Friday,

April 22, Communion and Liberation
and St. Thomas More Campus
Ministry will sponsor a Way of the
Cross on the campus of the Univer-
sity of Oklahoma. Participants will
gather at 3 p.m. at St. Thomas More
Catholic Church at 300 E. Stinson.
The procession will proceed to the
OU campus, stop at places on the
campus corresponding to each of the
traditional 14 stations, and end at
the Unity Garden on the South Oval
around 5 p.m.

The Way of the Cross, or Stations
of the Cross, is a centuries-old
Christian practice that memorializes
the events surrounding the death of
Christ. As Luca Doninelli, an Italian
journalist, put it, “Whoever follows
this path is not asked about any-
thing, there are no pre-conditions.
He is not asked to meditate. He is not
even asked to believe. It is enough to
be curious, it is enough to have that
infinitesimal thread of humanity
that allows us to walk and to ask:
Why are we killing that innocent
man?”

The practice of the Stations of

the Cross developed during the
Middle Ages, primarily through the
followers of St. Francis of Asissi, the
Franciscans. Over time, 14 stations,
each corresponding to a significant
event found in the Gospels or passed
down through tradition, became
normative, beginning with the con-
demnation of Jesus and ending with

his burial. Communion and Liber-
ation, an ecclesial lay movement of
the Catholic Church, follows these
14 traditional stations and incorpo-
rates readings from contemporary
Christian writers for reflection and
songs.

Traditionally, Stations  of  the
Cross are observed on Fridays, the

day of Christ’s death, and especially
Fridays during the Lenten season,
which serves as a preparation for
Easter. The practice of the Way
of the Cross culminates on Good
Friday, the day that commemorates
Jesus’ death as part of the Paschal
mystery that finds its pinnacle in the
Resurrection of Christ from the dead,
celebrated on Easter Sunday and
throughout the Easter season.

Around the United States, the
Way of the Cross will be observed by
many CL communities, including
New York City, where participants
walk from Brooklyn to Manhattan
over the Brooklyn Bridge, on the
mall in Washington, D.C., and in
downtown Chicago and Los Angeles.
The Way of the Cross serves as a
public witness to an event that
changed the meaning of our human-
ity.

St. Thomas  More  and
Communion and Liberation invite all
to participate in the Way of the Cross
at OU. Please contact Teresa Keupen
at tkeupen@yahoo.com or visit www.-
stm-ou.org/index.cfm?load=page&-
page=230.

OU students join in last year’s Good Friday ‘The Way of the Cross.’

Rachel’s Vineyard Retreat
“COME BACK TO ME WITH ALL YOUR HEART, your broken

heart, your troubled heart!” Through the prophet Joel, God calls to
each of us with these words on Ash Wednesday. Through a very
special healing ministry in our Archdiocese, God calls uniquely to
those who are suffering from the pain of abortion … their own
abortion, or that of a family member or friend. This healing process
is open to women and men, mothers and fathers of a child who was
aborted, grandparents, other family members or friends affected
by an abortion. Mercy, forgiveness and peace is God’s desire
for each of us. Come to a Rachel’s Vineyard Retreat and have an
opportunity to grieve the loss of this child and experience the peace
and happiness you seek. The next retreat in the Oklahoma City
area will be June 3-5. Please contact the Rachel’s Vineyard team
through the confidential phone line or e-mail with your questions.
Also, the international website has a great deal of information
about the retreat and locations and dates of the retreat throughout
the country. Phone (405) 623-3844 or e-mail rachelsvineyard-
okc@gmail.com. Website: www.rachelsvineyard.org.

Healing the pain of abortion – 
one weekend at a time.

Archbishop Coakley took to the airwaves during a conversation broadcast
by Oklahoma Catholic Broadcasting. Visiting with Archbishop Coakley is
Jeff Finnell, president of Oklahoma Catholic Broadcasting, and Father
Price Oswalt, a member of the board of directors. Catholic radio broadcasts
can be found at KTLR 890 AM and 94.1 FM.
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The Catholic Foundation

Wills
Bequests, made through your Will, are the

most frequently-made Planned Gifts. Yet 65%
of Americans don’t have a Will. Without a
Will, the laws of the state and the decisions of
a probate court may determine how your
estate is distributed and who will care for
your children if they are minors. A Will is not
only a statement of your priorities, but an
expression of your lasting commitment to our
Catholic faith. Through your Will, you desig-
nate the final recipients of the many gifts you
have been given by God in His generosity.
Remembering your parish, Catholic school
or other Catholic ministries through a gift
designated in your Will is your final Invest-
ment in the Future of Our Faith. A well-
planned Will allows you to make your wishes
known, take care of loved ones and leave a
lasting legacy to your church. 

Please Remember the Archdiocese of Oklahoma City in Your Estate Plans

For more information on Planned Giving, contact:
The Catholic Foundation of Oklahoma, Inc.

P.O. Box 32180
Oklahoma City, OK 73123

(405)721-4115 www.cfook.org
bsemtner@catharchdioceseokc.org

CORNERSTONE

Catholic Foundation of Oklahoma Board of Directors met for a
quarterly board meeting in the Grand Theater at St. Ann’s Retirement
Center. Besides the normal quarterly investments and program updates,
the meeting included a report from St. Ann’s Retirement Center Director
Sid Espinosa about the center and its ministry to the Archdiocese. Those
in attendance were, front row from left, Tom Avant, Barney Semtner,
Jerry Kelley, Mary McAnulty, Archbishop Beltran, Leonard Taron, Tom
Linville, Father Jim Greiner and Pete Dimond; second row from left, Don
Creel, Jaimee Zorio, Sherri Merle, Chad McDougall, Mary Beadles, John
Hefner, Manny Sanchez, Charles Lawrence, Jill Nisbet and Larry
Neubauer; third row from left, Joe Otto, Alan Aneshansley, Father Rex
Arnold, Ben Byers, John Baransy, David Johnson, Doug Oliver and Tony
Tyler.

Foundation Board Meets

Camacho Receives National Distinguished Principal Award
ARLINGTON, Va. — Joana

Camacho, principal of Sacred Heart
Catholic School in Oklahoma City,
will receive the 2011 Distinguished
Principal Award from the National
Catholic Educational Association
(NCEA).

Camacho will be honored at an
awards ceremony during the associa-
tion’s annual convention and exposi-
tion April 26-28 in New Orleans, La.

“Joana Camacho is the epitome of
what a Catholic school principal
should be,” said Brother Robert
Bimonte, executive director of the
NCEA Department of Elementary
Schools. “She takes her spiritual and
academic leadership very seriously.
She knows how to challenge people in
a way that is respectful and motiva-
tional, and her upbeat manner creates

a positive demeanor
throughout the
school.”

“ C a t h o l i c
education builds on
students’ natural
curiosities, inspiring
students with a love
and desire for
academic excellence,
lifelong learning, service and leader-
ship,” said Camacho in describing her
educational philosophy. “I strive to
nurture in each student the compas-
sion, courage and responsibility cru-
cial to become a true disciple of Christ
and a productive global citizen.”

Camacho is one of 12 principals
nationwide who have earned NCEA’s
top award for principals this year.

“Through their faith-filled leader-

ship and dedication to excellence,
these outstanding principals provide
the best in Catholic education to
students, families and communities
across the country,” said Brother
Bimonte. “They are a gift to the
Catholic Church and shining ex-
amples for all educators to emulate.”

About the Convention
NCEA’s annual convention and

expo, which draws educators, adminis-
trators, pastors and parents from
throughout the nation, will offer
general sessions, liturgies, depart-
mental meetings and development
and technology sessions. The event at
the Ernest N. Morial Convention
Center will also feature an exhibition
of the latest in educational products.

Keynote speakers will include
Sister Helen Prejean, author of “Dead

Man Walking” and noted death
penalty opponent, and Father Michael
Himes, professor of theology at
Boston College and frequent speaker
on Christian theology, sacramental
principles and ethics.

The 35th anniversary convocation
of the National Association of Parish
Catechetical Directors and the annual
meeting of the Catholic Library Asso-
ciation will take place concurrently
with the NCEA convention.

NCEA, founded in 1904, is a pro-
fessional membership organization
that provides leadership, direction
and service to fulfill the evangelizing,
catechizing and teaching mission of
the church. NCEA’s members include
elementary schools, high schools,
parish religious education programs
and seminaries.

Joana Camacho
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Grant Purchases Education Tools For Irish
A new Torso Model was purchased

recently  by  Bishop  McGuinness  Catholic
High School with funds from a grant by
the Catholic Foundation of Oklahoma. The
simulated cadaver is very realistic and aids
the students in the physiology class with
their studies. The students were learning
about the human body through pictures in
books. The model is life-sized and contains 32
detachable parts, all of which are color-coded
and numbered to demonstrate 628 body
structures. The hands-on learning that is
possible with this equipment is vastly su-
perior to just looking at pictures in books,
according to Dr. Stephen Troy, a medical
doctor and instructor for the physiology
classes at McGuinness. He adds that the
model will bring an ideal learning environ-
ment to the classroom and will prepare
the students for college, especially those
considering entering the medical profession.
The students are currently working on a
name for their new model.

Every year the Catholic Foundation
accepts grant requests in August and Sep-

tember for educational grants to parishes,
schools and organizations within the Arch-
diocese. This last fall, grants were awarded to
38 different groups and totaled over $66,000.
In addition to program materials, many
of the grant requests have focused on
computers and technology as a means of
engaging more students in the educational
process. The grants are intended to assist the
recipients with the cost of programs other-
wise not possible without assistance from the
Catholic Foundation. Grants are awarded
based upon the significance of the project, its
expected outcome and financial necessity.
The funds awarded are intended to support
the project of the requesting organization,
and are not intended to supplement operat-
ing expenses. Grant requests will not be
considered  for  auctions  or  fundraising
events, debt reduction, brick and mortar-
type projects, endowment funds or capital
campaigns.

For more information, call (405) 721-4115
or go to www.cfook.org or e-mail bsemtner@-
catharchdioceseokc.org.Junior Jessica Mass works with the new Torso Model.

From left, Julia Anderson-Holt, science teacher at Bishop McGuinness
Catholic High School, Natalie Johnson, fourth-grade teacher at St. John
Nepomuk, and Monica Schmidlkoffer, junior high science teacher at St. Philip
Neri. These teachers spent three days at Notre Dame with teachers and dioce-
san curriculum coordinators from other dioceses. They were trained by Sister
Gail Mayotte and Dr. Tom Doyle from the ACE Collaborative at Notre Dame.
Master teachers were selected to attend this conference based upon their
dedication to Catholic education and their commitment to improving the
Archdiocesan curriculum. They will go on to train more teachers in our dio-
cese this summer and for years to come. In addition, we will select three more
teachers to attend next year’s conference.

OKLAHOMA CITY — On Thursday, March 24, the Mount St. Mary
Catholic High School Music Department hosted its first ever “Music Day at The
Mount.”

Over 50 students from the Catholic feeder schools joined the Rocket
musicians for a fun day of learning about music. The middle school music
students were split up into four groups and rotated between different music
sessions in choir, drum line, band and strings. Students learned tips on how to
sing in a choir and learned how to play a variety of instruments from the MSM
musicians themselves! Music Day at The Mount closed with the MSM Mass
Ensemble leading the group in an acoustic version of Sanctuary.

“We had a great day teaching the middle school students about music. It
was very cool to see my MSM students share their passion for music with
younger students. I am already looking forward to next year,” said Mount St.
Mary Catholic High School music director Amy Burk.

Connor Hartzell works with two feeder school students.

Mount Hosts Music Day
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Pope: God ‘Touches Our Hearts,’ Then Waits for Answer
VATICAN CITY (CNA/EWTN

News) — Before the thousands of
faithful gathered March 27 in St.
Peter’s Square for the Sunday
Angelus, Pope Benedict XVI said
that God’s all-powerful love re-
spects the freedom of every person
and therefore touches man’s heart
and “waits patiently for his
answer.”

“God the Father sent Christ to
satisfy our thirst for eternal life by
giving us his love, but Jesus asks of
us the gift of our faith,” the Pope
stated before the Angelus.

He discussed the gospel read-
ing about Jesus’ encounter with
the Samaritan woman at the well,
explaining that his fatigue is “a
sign of his true humanity,” which
can be seen as a prelude of his
Passion.

His encounter with the woman
at the well raises the theme of
thirst and foreshadows his cry on
the Cross: “I have thirst.”

While this thirst and fatigue
had a physical aspect, the Pope
explained, Jesus “thirsted” for the
woman’s faith and for the faith of
all mankind.

The water in the gospel story
“clearly” refers to the sacrament of
baptism, “the source of new life for

the faith in the grace of God.” The
water represents the Holy Spirit,
the gift “par excellence” that Jesus
brings to man from God the Father.

“Each one of us can take the
place of the Samaritan woman,” the
Pope continued.

“Jesus waits for us, especially
in this time of Lent, to speak with
us. Let us pause for a moment in
silence in our room, or in a church
or in a secluded place.”

“Listen to his voice that tells
us, ‘If you knew the gift of God…’,”
he said as he finished his remarks.

He closed with the prayer, “May
the Virgin Mary help us not to miss
this event, on which depends our
true happiness.”

After the Angelus, Pope
Benedict offered a “warm greeting”
to English-speaking visitors.

“In today’s Gospel, Jesus
speaks to the Samaritan women of
the gift of the Holy Spirit, the
water which wells up to eternal life
in those who believe. Through our
Lenten observance, may all of us
be renewed in the grace of our
baptism and prepare with hearts
renewed to celebrate the gift of new
life at Easter. Upon you and your
families I invoke God’s blessings of
joy and peace!”

VATICAN CITY (CNA/EWTN
News) — Confession teaches both
priests and penitents to be humble
and aware of God’s forgiveness, Pope
Benedict XVI said March 25. “By
administering  the  Sacrament  of
Penance, we can receive profound
lessons of humility and faith,” he told
a gathering of priests at the Vatican.
“For each priest, this is a powerful
call to an awareness of his own
identity. Never could we hear the
confessions of our brothers and
sisters merely on the strength of our
own humanity.”

“If they come to us it is only
because we are priests, configured
to Christ, the Supreme and Eternal

Priest, and granted the capacity of
acting in His Name and Person, so as
to make present the God Who for-
gives, renews and transforms,” the
Pope said. His remarks addressed
participants in an annual course
organized by the Apostolic Peni-
tentiary, the  Vatican  tribunal  in
charge  of  granting  indulgences,
resolving sins reserved to the Pope,
and resolving matters of conscience
forwarded to the Holy See.

The course concerned the “in-
ternal forum,” a technical term for
the personal area of conscience
and judgment in the priest-penitent
relationship. Pope  Benedict  told
the priests that the sacrament of

Penance teaches the priest about his
faith and the truth and poverty of his
person. It also nourishes in him
an awareness of his sacramental
identity. He also pointed out that
individual freedom and self-aware-
ness  are  expressed  “particularly
clearly” in the sacrament. “It is
perhaps for this reason too that, in
an age of relativism and of the conse-
quent reduced awareness of self, the
practice of this Sacrament should
also have diminished.”

The pontiff then touched on the
practice known as an examination of
conscience, which involves a review
of one’s sins and failings. This
practice, he said, teaches Catholics to

compare their lives with “the truth
of the Gospel.” Comparing one’s
life with the Commandments, the
Beatitudes and “above all” the com-
mandment to love represents a great
“school of penance,” Pope Benedict
told the priests. An “integral confes-
sion” helps penitents recognize their
own fragility, achieve an awareness
of the need for God’s forgiveness, and
achieve the belief that divine grace
can transform life. “(D)o not fail to
give appropriate space to exercising
the ministry of penance in the con-
fessional. To be welcomed and heard
is also a human sign of God’s
welcome and goodness toward His
children,” he said.

Pontiff: Confession Teaches Humility to Priest, Penitent
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Across Oklahoma
Sunday Mass on the Radio

OKLAHOMA CITY — Oklahoma Catholic
Radio, KTLR, will now be broadcasting Sunday
Mass from noon to 1 p.m. on 890 AM and 94.1
FM. For more information, please visit their
website at www.okcatholicbroadcasting.com.

Benefit to Support Officer Peery
OKLAHOMA CITY — Alumni of Mount St.

Mary High School will host a fundraiser to
support fellow Mount alum Chad Peery, an
Oklahoma City police officer. The event will be
held April 8 at the National Cowboy and
Western Heritage Museum. Tickets are $30 and
can be purchased at http://tinyurl.com/4qado2t.

Officer Peery was injured recently while off
duty after he was beaten by two men. Officer
Peery had been with his father and a friend
at an Oklahoma City bar watching basketball
when he was asked by employees to help escort
some unruly men out of the bar. Officer Peery
was beaten severely during the incident and has
been left paralyzed.

For more information about how to donate to
the event, go to www.officerchadpeery.com 

Silent Retreat
OKLAHOMA CITY — God’s Music is Silence.

Come away to a women’s Silent Retreat to
explore your creativity and to get closer to our
Creative God in whose image we are made.
Katie Gordy is offering a retreat from 9 a.m.
April 15 to noon April 17. The retreat will be

held at Mount St. Mary’s. If you have any
questions or would like to register, call Gordy at
627-6954.

Chrism Mass
OKLAHOMA CITY — Chrism Mass will be

April 19 at 6 p.m. at Our Lady’s Cathedral. At
the Chrism Mass the priests renew the commit-
ments they made at their ordination and the
three holy oils used by all the parishes of the
Archdiocese for the following year are blessed by
Archbishop Coakley. All are welcome.

Catholics Returning Home
OKLAHOMA CITY — St. Charles Borromeo

Parish is offering an informal discussion group
for people who are interested in returning to the
Church. The group will be meeting on Tuesday,
April 28 from 6 to 7 p.m. in the Kastner Room.
The remaining dates are May 3, May 10, May 17
and May 24. This is an open forum for people to
discuss why they left the Church and to investi-
gate the possibility of returning. For more in-for-
mation, contact the parish office at 789-2595.

Farewell to Villa Teresa Moore 
OKLAHOMA CITY — Villa Teresa Moore

School at 13501 S. Western will be closing in
May 2011. We will be hosting a farewell get-
together on April 30 from 1 to 4 p.m. All are
welcome to come visit the school for the last
time. Call Ann Grover at 691-7737 if you have
any questions.

Villa Teresa’s Spring Soiree
OKLAHOMA CITY — Villa Teresa Catholic

School is hosting a dinner/auction with live
and silent auction, Saturday, April 30 at St.
Anthony’s Medical Plaza Building located at 535
NW 9th St., fourth floor, from 6 to 10 p.m. Child
care will be provided at the school (1216 Classen
Drive). Donations are appreciated. The dinner,
“Villa Night Live,” has live entertainment —
“Made in America: The Blues Brothers Tribute.”
Admission tickets may be purchased on the PTO
website at www.VTSPTO.com. Tickets are $25
per person. All proceeds benefit Villa Teresa
Catholic School.

PGA Center of Family Love Golf Tournament
KINGFISHER — April 30 at the Kingfisher

Golf Club, the CFL will host a four-person golf
scramble with a shotgun start at 8 a.m. Cost is
$55 per person or $200 per team of four. For
information or to register, call Ed Alvord at (405)
314-8171. All proceeds raised will be used by the
Parent Guardian Association (PGA) of the CFL
to support programs for adults with develop-
ment disabilities at the CFL.

Bingo April 28 at St. James 
OKLAHOMA CITY — Bingo at St. James

Catholic Church, 41st and South McKinley
Avenue, April 28. Food and beverages reason-
ably priced will be served at 5:45 p.m. Bingo
begins at 6:30 p.m.

Planned Parenthood: Taking Funds From the Poor to Kill the Poor

A priest friend of mine has been known to say,
“Abortion is nothing more than violence mas-
querading as compassion.” Planned Parenthood,
the nation’s largest abortion provider, tries hard to
keep public focus on their “compassionate” services
to women and not on the grisly reality that they put
to death over 300,000 defenseless children, year in
and year out.

As much as abortion advocates struggle to hide
that violence from the public view, nothing can hide
the ongoing revelations of botched abortions and
wanton injuries and deaths of mothers undergoing
abortions coming from many abortion clinics
around the country. The news of Dr. Gosnell’s
chamber of horrors abortion factory in Philadelphia
was the most dramatic example of the depravity
to which a person might sink when he makes his
living by killing children. Abortion makes fast

money with little-to-no government regulation.
Gosnell has been charged with eight counts of

murder and several staffers at his abortion center
have been charged with assisting in botched
abortions, practicing medicine without a license or
covering up the actions of those who did. The counts
include grisly infanticides of babies whose prema-
ture births were induced so they could be killed in
the minutes following their births.

This kind of horrific news seems to be helping
Americans wake up to the extent of the carnage:
over 50 million children dead, and over 5 million of
them at the hands of Planned Parenthood staff.

Every abortion — whether in a filthy
slaughterhouse or in a clean and bright abortuary
— still destroys a precious little boy or girl. And
their mothers have died from abortions done at
Planned Parenthood centers as well — from
California to Massachusetts and states in between.

The abortion industry takes in over a billion
dollars a year, so why does its flagship, Planned

Parenthood, require $360 million a year in tax-
payer funding? Planned Parenthood will argue that
those federal dollars go to other expenses like
salaries, rent or other programs, but this certainly
frees other monies to be spent on promoting and
performing abortions.

As Congress has been debating ways to cut
back on the budget, pro-life members have pro-
posed cutting all funding for Planned Parenthood
and its 102 affiliates all around the country. But
Senate Leader Harry Reid has now threatened that
the Senate will not tolerate any defunding of
Planned Parenthood. If Congress is really con-
cerned about compassionate care for women, it
should redirect funds now provided to organiza-
tions that perform and promote abortion, and
instead respond to the basic needs of the poor.

Tom Grenchik is executive director of the
Secretariat of Pro-Life Activities, U.S. Conference of
Catholic Bishops. Go to www.usccb.org/prolife to
learn more about the bishops pro-life activities.

By Tom Grenchik 
USCCB ProLife Activites 
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St. Catherine of Siena to be Depicted by Sister Nancy Murray

EL RENO — St. Catherine of
Siena was a “force of nature” in her
time.

Feisty and outspoken, unshak-
able in her faith and dedicated to the
church, St. Catherine led a life full of
purpose and charity in her 33 short
years.

Much like Sister Nancy Murray.
A Dominican nun, Sister Nancy

has portrayed St. Catherine during
about 500 performances, each time
learning something new about a
woman who lived and died more
than 600 years ago — and the lasting
legacy she left behind.

Sister Nancy will bring St.
Catherine’s story to Sacred Heart
School April 9, the latest in what
has become the Adrian, Mich., nun’s
vocation.

“It’s a privilege that’s taken me
farther than I ever would have envi-
sioned it,” Sister Nancy said by phone.
“It’s funny to think back that what
would become a full-time ministry
started off when I took over for some-
one else.”

Sister Nancy said St. Catherine
always intrigued her. When her late

friend and former drama teacher,
Sister Kathleen Harkins, was unable
to continue performances, Sister
Nancy assumed the role and made it
her own. A former inner-city teacher
and chaplain, Sister Nancy said her
portrayal of St. Catherine’s was a way
to bring teaching out of the classroom.

“It’s been easy in a way because
St. Catherine’s story appeals to young
and old — all sorts of people,” she
said. “People get so much from her
story, and it’s a joy to be able to share
who she really was, to make it more
than words on paper.”

Her portrayal of St. Catherine
has taken Sister Nancy far from
Wilmette, Ill., where she grew up as

one of nine siblings — six brothers
and two sisters. Born in 1947, Sister
Nancy grew up with a love of the   the-
ater — something she shared with
members of her family. Four of her
brothers — including actor Bill
Murray — turned to acting, although
Sister Nancy stood out among them.

“My brothers give me a bad time
because I’m the only one who has a
degree in theater,” she said with a
laugh. “They laugh because I don’t get
the biggest pay — but I do have the
greatest job security.”

That “job” has taken Sister Nancy
all over the country, as well as several
overseas junkets. She said she has
performed in fundraisers held after
hurricanes and under a blue tarp in
Seattle after an earthquake damaged
the cathedral there. In 2003, Sister
Nancy had a chance to see the birth-
place of St. Catherine herself — an
experience she said changed her life.

“At that point I had been portray-
ing St. Catherine for three years, and
I had never been to Siena,” she said. “I
was able to learn some Italian and
perform in Rome for the major su-
periors of the Dominican Order in
English, Spanish, Italian German and
French.

“It was an amazing experience.”

Traveling as she does, Sister
Nancy said sometimes it’s hard to
remember what day-to-day life at the
order is like. A recent recovery after
knee surgery brought her back to her
roots, she said.

“It’s been a good experience — a
chance for me to get to know people
other than attending Mass or having
a meal,” she said. “It’s a chance for
me to let the people I have in my
life know I need them, and I re-
spond just to an audience — hobbling
with a cane or having physical
therapy together is a good bonding
experience.

“St. Catherine and her story are
so important to me, and it’s important
that I truly convey the depth of who
she was,” Sister Nancy said. “It’s
humbling and a way that I can live a
life of public witness, sharing some-
thing people of today can relate to.”

Sister Nancy’s performance is set
for 7 p.m. April 9 at Sacred Heart.
Hors d’oeuvres and cocktails will be
served at 6 p.m. before the perform-
ance, and are covered by the $25
admission price. Tickets can be
purchased at Sacred Heart School
or online at http://www.elrenosacred-
heart.com/. Tickets will be $30 at the
door.

By Traci Chapman
For the Sooner Catholic

Church Needs Courageous Apostles to Fight Religious Indifference, Says Pope
VATICAN CITY — (CNA/EWTN

News) — Pope Benedict said at his
Wednesday general audience that the
modern world needs “zealous” disci-
ples of Christ, who will fight religious
indifference with the “light and
beauty” of the Gospel.

The Pope dedicated his teaching
at the Vatican on March 23 to St.
Lawrence of Brindisi, who was born in
Italy in 1559 and was named one of
the Doctors of the Church for his ex-
pertise in preaching Catholic doctrine
and Sacred Scripture.

St. Lawrence is known for his
“clear and tranquil” explanations of
the Christian faith to his surrounding
culture, the pontiff noted, particularly
to those who had left the Church in
the wake of the Reformation.

“Even today, the new evangeliza-
tion needs well-trained, zealous and
courageous apostles, so that the light
and beauty of the Gospel may prevail

over the cultural trends of ethical
relativism and religious indifference,”
he said. This effort will help trans-
form the various ways people
think about life and help them act
with an “authentic Christian human-
ism.”

St. Lawrence, who lost his father
at the age of 7, was entrusted by his
mother to the care of the Franciscan
Friars Minor Conventuals. He later
entered the Order of Capuchins and
was ordained a priest in 1582.

The  saint  acquired  a  deep
knowledge of ancient and modern
languages, which enabled him to
“undertake an intense apostolate
among various categories of people,”
the Pope explained.

He was also an effective preacher,
who was so well versed in the Bible
and rabbinic literature “that rabbis
themselves were amazed and showed
him esteem and respect.”

“The success enjoyed by St.
Lawrence helps us to understand that
even today, as the hope-filled journey
of ecumenical dialogue continues, the
reference to Sacred Scripture, read in
the Tradition of the Church, is an
indispensable element of fundamental
importance,” Pope Benedict said.

He added that even “the lowliest
members of the faithful” benefited
“from the convincing words of St.
Lawrence, who addressed the humble
in order to call everyone to live a life
coherent with the faith they pro-
fessed.”

The Pope then noted another
prominent aspect of St. Lawrence’s
life, which was his tireless work to pro-
mote political and religious peace.

Popes and Catholic princes “re-
peatedly entrusted him with im-
portant diplomatic missions to placate
controversies and favor harmony be-
tween European States, which at the

time were threatened by the Ottoman
Empire,” he said.

“Today, as in St. Lawrence’s time,
the world has great need of peace, it
needs peace-loving and peace-building
men and women,” Pope Benedict said.
“Everyone who believes in God must
always be a source of peace and work
for peace.”

St. Lawrence was canonized in
1881 and declared a Doctor of the
Church in 1959 by Blessed John
XXIII, who recognized not only the
saint’s personal sanctity, but his
numerous contributions to biblical
scholarship.

“St. Lawrence of Brindisi,” Pope
Benedict said, “teaches us to love
Sacred Scripture, to become increas-
ingly familiar with it, daily to cultivate
our relationship with the Lord in
prayer, so that our every action, our
every activity, finds its beginning and
its fulfillment in Him.”



Como Obispos Católicos de la Arquidiócesis de la Ciudad de Oklahoma y la
Diócesis de Tulsa, nuestras oraciones están con todos nuestros senadores y rep-
resentantes electos estatales al debatir muchas de las propuestas de leyes que no
solo tienen dimensiones políticas y económicas, pero también morales. Estamos
muy agradecidos por el apoyo legislativo de  las leyes que protegen a los niños
aún no nacidos y promover la protección del matrimonio como una institución
fundacional en nuestra sociedad. La legislación pendiente regulando inmi-
gración también tiene una dimensión moral.

La reforma inmigratoria es primeramente la responsabilidad de nuestros ofi-
ciales federales. Con esto ya dicho, cualquier propuesta de ley reformatoria de
nivel estatal debe iniciar con el compromiso de respetar la dignidad fundamental
de todo ser humano, no meramente los ciudadanos o aquellos con la propia docu-
mentación que están en nuestro país y estado. También estamos preocupados,
que estas propuestas de inmigración tendrán el efecto intencional o no inten-
cional de infundir  el temor en una populación que ya esta vulnerable.

Nos gustaría iniciar diciendo que la enseñanza social Católica lo dice muy
claro, "Respeto a la persona humana nos manda a que  "todos debemos

de tratar  a nuestros hermanos (sin alguna excepción) como  'otro
yo". Ninguna legislación puede deshacer la realidad que todo

ser humano es nuestro hermano y "el deber de  unirnos a
otros y activamente sirviéndolos y se hace mucho más

urgente cuando se involucra al desventajado, en
cualquier situación que esto pueda ser. "  "Al hacer esto
al más pequeño, lo hiciste a mí."  Dice Cristo "Cuando
tenía hambre me diste de comer."   Esto es un
mandato que no debe de ser ignorado, o de
ninguna forma mitigado por la ley humana.

Mientras que la Iglesia Católica
reconoce que el derecho del gobierno es
proteger sus fronteras soberanas,
también reconocemos el principio
de solidaridad y que todos
somos personas creadas por
Dios. Creemos firme-
mente que, ya que todos
somos  creados por

Dios, la dignidad
humana y los derechos

humanos no son comodidades
para que sean asignados de

acuerdo a la nacionalidad.
El esfuerzo por leyes de

inmigración justa es complejo
pero necesario. Es nuestra oración

que el Congreso promulgue una
reforma de inmigración comprensiva

y justa, que  hará  (1) reconocer nuestra
dependencia en los trabajadores indocu-

mentados, (2) proveer un  salario justo y
condiciones decentes de trabajo y (3) ofrecer un

paso para un estatus legal que traerá a estas personas indocumentadas fuera de la oscuridad, donde son fácilmente vic-
timas por los traficantes humanos  y otros que se aprovechan sin escrúpulos. Oramos que las decisiones de nuestros oficiales

electos estatales sean guiadas por una búsqueda para el buen común de todos y no por intereses económicos o políticos que fallan al proteger y promover la dig-
nidad humana, la unidad familiar y los niños.

En corto, queremos reiterar que la Iglesia Católica siempre obedecerá el mandamiento de Cristo que nos dice "Cuando tuve hambre me diste de comer",
porque en los pobres vemos el rostro de Cristo. Continuaremos haciendo esto para todo el pobre sin tener en cuenta su raza, estatus, religión o credo. Oremos
que nuestros legisladores reconozcan ambos y apliquen ese mismo mandamiento en todas sus deliberaciones y debates.
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Declaración Sobre Inmigración

Archbishop
Paul S.
Coakley

Bishop
Edward J.

Slattery
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Jobs Box    
Part-Time Music Teacher

St. Charles Borromeo Catholic School in
Oklahoma City is seeking a part-time music
teacher for the 2011-2012 school year. Liturgical
music director duties for leading student choir and
accompaniment at school Masses to be negotiated.
Fax résumé and certification to Todd Gungoll at
(405) 789-3583 or e-mail tgungoll@scbschool.org.

Teacher Openings for 2011-2012
Mount St. Mary Catholic High School in

Oklahoma City is seeking full-time teachers in
Religion and English for the 2011-2012 school year.
Fax resume and certification to Talita De Negri at
(405) 631-9209, or tdenegri@mountstmary.org.

Director of Religious Education
Epiphany of the Lord Parish, Oklahoma

City, is accepting applications for full-time position
of Director of Religious Education. The parish is
searching for a candidate deeply rooted in the
Catholic faith with experience and vision to serve
its 1,600 families. The director will coordinate all
education programs for children and adults. The
director will be responsible for catechist recruit-
ment, formation and certification, and must also
collaborate with the parish leaders of youth
ministry, music, and the Journey of Faith.

Applicants should have a degree in theology,
religious education or related area and a minimum
of five years experience working in catechetical
ministry (master’s degree preferred). Interested
candidates should contact Patricia Koenig in the
Archdiocesan Office of Religious Education to
initiate the application process, PKoenig@Cath-
ArchdioceseOKC.org, or (405) 721-5651 Ext. 126.

Director of Religious Education

St. Francis of Assisi Parish in Oklahoma
City is accepting applications for a dynamic
Director of Religious Education. Full-time position
and benefits. Starting June 2011. Experience
preferred. Degree in religious education, theology
or equivalent degree required. Application and job
description available by calling the parish office at
(405) 528-0485. Send application, resume and
references to DRE Search Committee, St. Francis
of Assisi Parish, 1901 N. W. 18th St., Oklahoma
City, Okla. 73106.

Executive Assistant to the Provost
St. Gregory’s University has an opening for

the position of Executive Assistant to the Provost.
This position is responsible for administrative
support to the Provost’s office: prepare corre-
spondence, including drafting simple memos and
letters; arrange travel; process requisitions and
maintain the Provost’s budget as well as faculty
records; take minutes at faculty meetings; main-
tain Course Catalogs and Faculty/Student Life
Handbooks. The position also will provide support
to the Dean of Arts and Sciences and Registrar and
perform special projects as assigned. Associates
degree highly desired or equivalent credentials or
experience. Excellent organizational, interpersonal
and written and communication skills required.
Absolute confidentiality, particularly with
personnel and student matters mandatory. Send
cover letter, resume and references to St. Gregory’s
University, Human Resources Director, 1900 W.
MacArthur, Shawnee, Okla. 74804, or e-mail
hr@stgregorys.edu. EOE 

Five Full-Time Teachers
St. Gregory’s University, a Catholic and

Benedictine liberal arts community (est. 1875),
seeks qualified applicants for the following five

full-time, tenure-track positions: English/-
Education, Philosophy (applied and medical ethics
desirable), Biology, History and Dance. We seek
faculty who are broadly trained and student-
oriented. Ph.D. preferred; ABD candidates
considered if doctorate near completion. Minimum
of MFA in Dance. Responsibilities include teaching
a range of undergraduate courses, student recruit-
ment, professional development and university
service. Appointments begin August 2011 (pending
final budget approval). See full job description at
www.stgregorys.edu. Send letter of application,
vita, transcripts, statement of teaching philosophy
and three letters of recommendation electronically
to hr@stgregorys.edu.

Teachers Needed

EL RENO — Sacred Heart Catholic School is
in need of two certified teachers for the 2011-2012
school year. Please send resume and references c/o
Shannon Statton, 210 S. Evans, El Reno, Okla.
73036, or fax (405) 262-3818. Sacred Heart
Catholic School will be hiring a janitor pending a
background check for the 2011-2012 school year.
Please apply in person after 3:30 p.m. or send
resume to Sacred Heart School, 210 S. Evans, El
Reno, Okla. 73036.

Math Temp Needed

St. Charles Borromeo Catholic School in
Oklahoma City is seeking a part-time middle
school math teacher for the remainder of this
academic year ending on May 27, 2011. The
responsibilities include assisting the eighth-grade
math program. Please fax résumé and certification
to Todd Gungoll at (405) 789-3583 or e-mail to
tgungoll@scbschool.org.

Calendar  
APRIL

3 Byzantine Liturgy will be
offered at 5 p.m. at St. Mark’s
Church, 3939 W. Tecumseh Road,
Norman. Moleben-Intercessions
to Christ Emmanuel will be
celebrated after Liturgy. For more
information, call Father Phil
Seeton at (580) 536-6351.

5 Relics of St. Damien of
Molokai will be enshrined at the
Catholic Pastoral Center Chapel,
Oklahoma City, on April 5 from
11:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. All are
invited. Mass will be celebrated at
11:30 a.m. Short prayer services
will be held at 1, 2, 3 and 4 p.m.

6 Eucharistic Adoration at the
Cathedral of Our Lady of Perpetual
Help, NW 32nd and Western, every
Wednesday, 8:30 a.m. to noon.

7 Exposition of the Blessed
Sacrament at Epiphany Parish
Chapel, every Thursday, 8:30 a.m.
to 8 p.m. and daily (M,T,W,F) from
8:30 to 9:30 a.m. All are welcome.
Epiphany is located at 7336 W.
Britton Road, Oklahoma City.

7 Eucharistic Adoration every
Thursday night from 5 p.m. to
midnight at St. Gregory’s Chapel,
St. Gregory’s Monastery,
Shawnee. The evening will begin
with Mass at 5 p.m. with adoration

to follow. Included is vespers with
the monks.

9 The Benedictine Oblates of
Red Plains Spirituality Center
will meet from 2:30 to 4:30 p.m. on
the second Saturday of the month.
They join the Community for
Vespers, followed by a potluck
dinner. For more information,
contact Sister Eunice at 373-4565
or osbokc@-ionet.net.

10 Charismatic Healing Mass,
5:30 p.m. at Immaculate
Conception Catholic Church, 3901
S.W. 29th St., Oklahoma City. For
more information, call the church
office at (405) 685-4806.

12 Catholic War Veterans (of any
war/conflict) will meet the second
Tuesday of each month in the
community room of St. Ann
Retirement Center at 7 p.m.
For more information, contact
Father M. Price Oswalt at (405)
567-3404.

13 Catholic War Veterans USA.
Oklahoma Memorial Post 168
meets every second Wednesday of
the month at 7 p.m. in the
Sunnylane Family Reception
Center located at 3900 SE
29th St. in Del City. For more
information, contact Ken at
(405) 739-0036 or by e-mail at
OkPost168@cox.net.
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Catholic Men Challenged to Be Christ-Like to Families

NORMAN — The more than 700 men
who attended the 15th Annual Catholic Men’s
Conference known as “In the Father’s Footsteps”
may have left the day feeling as though they had
been pounded on by the heavyweight champion
of the world. And, even more peculiar, they loved
every minute of it.

Speaker after speaker hammered the men
with the Christ-filled message that men are
called to be servants of God and servants to their
families. Then and only then will they find peace
and satisfaction in their lives. Judging from the
applause and standing ovations the speakers
received, the men were in total agreement.

The theme of this year’s conference, held
at the Embassy Suites Hotel and Conference
Center, was The Way of the Cross: “No one has
greater love than this, to lay down one’s life for
one’s friends.” (John 15:13)

Archbishop Paul S. Coakley opened the day
with welcoming remarks and prayer. This was
Archbishop Coakley’s first time to address the
Men’s Conference. He was installed as the fourth
Archbishop of Oklahoma City on Feb. 11, 2011.
The new archbishop told the men they were
there to “be renewed in our faith.” He told them
to seek “encouragement from one another” and
challenged them as “Catholic men to go and live
out our faith.”

At the end of the conference, Archbishop
Coakley  celebrated  Mass  with  Archbishop
Eusebius J. Beltran, Emeritus, concelebrating.

But before Mass was celebrated, the men
were rocked by three powerful speakers who

challenged them to
become the men God
intended them to be
and to live out their
Catholic faith in a way
that lets others know
they understand their
role in this life: to know,
love and serve God.

Robert Rogers, who
in 2003 lost his entire
family, his wife and five
children, to a flash flood
that swept their vehicle
off I-35 in Kansas, told
the men to live a “life of
no regrets.”

Rogers said he
spent three years in
grief counseling follow-
ing the tragedy, but he
knew immediately after
losing his family he had

to make a choice. He said
as he and his father were

making funeral arrangements, they had a
moment where it became clear to him that he
could either turn away from God in anger and
resentment or he could rely on his faith in an all-
loving and merciful God to pull him through.

Rogers has been blessed with a new wife
and children. He created a foundation in honor
of God and his family known as “Mighty in the
Land.” The foundation has built homes for
orphans in places around the world including
Russia and Africa. Rogers does not charge a fee
to speak at conferences such as the one held in
Norman. He said he relies totally on God for his
well-being and that of his family.

He offered the men seven steps to live a life
of “no regrets.”

1. Know God personally 
2. Worship God wholeheartedly
3. Obey God unconditionally 
4. Trust God absolutely
5. Cherish your family intentionally
6. Love your spouse sacrificially
7. Forgive others repeatedly
“Fall in love with Jesus and your wife and

children will fall in love with you,” Rogers told
the men before performing an emotional song he
wrote for his oldest daughter. You can learn more
about Rogers at www.mightyintheland.com.

Archbishop Coakley, Archbishop Emeritus Beltran and priests from throughout the Archdiocese are
joined by deacons as they pray before offering the Sacrament of Reconciliation for men attending the
conference.

Bob Scheer performs an original song, “Sister Mary’s Bell,” for the men’s
conference.

More than 700 attend
15th Annual Men’s Conference
Held in Norman Hotel
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If you missed this year’s “In the Father’s Footsteps”
Men’s Conference, or just want to hear the speakers again,
Oklahoma Catholic Radio, KTLR, will be broadcasting this
year’s talks. Tune in to 890 AM and 94.1 FM April 4-8 to
hear this year’s speakers. Deacon Harold Burke-Sivers’
talk, “No Greater Love: Living in the Heart of the
Crucified Christ” will play on Monday, April 4 at 5 p.m.
and then again at 8 p.m. The talk by Father Larry
Richards, “Confession,” will play on Wednesday, April 6 at
5 p.m. and then again at 8 p.m. Finally, you can hear
Richard Rogers’ talk, “No Regrets,” on Friday, April 8 at 5
p.m. and then again at 8 p.m.

Please take time this Lent to listen to these powerful
messages. They will motivate and inspire your Lenten
journey.

Encore Presentation of
Catholic Men’s Conference

Father Larry Richards: Sports Can’t Come Before Jesus
NORMAN — Father Larry

Richards   summed   it   up   pretty
quickly   for   the   men   attending
the 15th Annual Catholic Men’s
Conference held here March 12.

“Gentlemen, you have a choice,
you either become a saint or you go
to hell,” Father Richards told the
audience. Was he joking? Sort of?
Well, no, actually he wasn’t.

A priest of 23 years from Erie,
Pa., Father Richards delivered a
stunning message to the men
gathered in the conference center at
the Embassy Suites Hotel. He had
them laughing one minute and
solemnly bowing their heads the
next. He scolded men and society
for putting more emphasis on
sports than on God. He told the
story of coaching a Catholic high
school football team years ago and
when he asked the players what
they had to do to have a winning
season, they responded, practice
long and hard every day. He then
challenged them with the same
question, only this time instead of
a winning football season, he asked
them what they had to do to get to
heaven.

Father Richards said that’s the

great problem in our country,
we put more time and emphasis
practicing sports and very little
time developing our relationship
with Jesus Christ. He challenged
the men to pray every day and to
read the Bible.

“You’re going to be my age
someday and you’re going to tell
your own sons, ‘When I was in high

school we won the state champion-
ship, and you know what they’re
going to say, they’re going to say.
‘Who cares, dad, now you’re just old
and fat,’” is how he said he re-
sponded to his football team.

The author of “Be a Man —
Becoming the Man God Created You
to Be,” Father Richards told the
men, God “wants you to be a saint.

Becoming a saint should be your
number one goal.” He said we are
called to be holy because “God
dwells inside of each of us.”

Father Richards called on men
to be less judgmental. He said
Catholics can often be quite judg-
mental. He said we are called to
love.

“God didn’t so judge the world
that He sent His only son,” Father
Richards said. “God so loved the
world that He sent His only son.”

Deacon  Harold  Burke-Sivers
followed Father Richards with a
message on Catholic apologetics. He
said Satan “goes after the family
first. The number one target of
Satan today is the family,” Deacon
Harold said. “Satan knows if the
family falls, he wins.”

He said some $3,000 per second
is spent on pornography in our
nation. It’s destroying lives and
families, he said.

The conference offered the men
the opportunity to take part in
the Sacrament of Reconciliation. A
dozen or so priests were scattered
about the conference center as long
lines of men waited patiently for
their turn.

Father Larry Richards and Deacon Roy Forsythe at the men’s conference.

Clockwise, Robert Rogers delivers
his powerful message of hope and
healing to the men’s conference.
Deacon Harold Burke-Sivers
challenges the men with his message
of “No Greater Love: Living in the
Heart of the Crucified Christ.” And
Oklahoma State University
wrestling coach John Smith talks
briefly to the general audience before
speaking to a young men’s group.
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March 25, 2011

Dear Brothers and Sisters in Christ,
Good stewardship of our financial

resources is an important component
in the stewardship way of life. As indi-
viduals, families, parishes and as an
Archdiocese, we are entrusted with
many gifts. The way we use these gifts
expresses our values and priorities as
disciples and as a Church. We support
what we believe in. I thank you for your
financial support of the Archdiocese,
especially through the annual ADF
appeal and planned giving.

Transparency and accountability are
necessary to inspire trust and confidence. Therefore, in the exercise
of my stewardship over archdiocesan resources, I accept the re-
sponsibility to provide an annual report of our financial position. In
this spirit I present this financial report for fiscal year 2010. It has
been prepared by our archdiocesan business office and reviewed by
independent auditors as well as by our archdiocesan finance council.
I offer it now for your review.

Though it certainly does not tell the whole story, this report offers
a glimpse into the life of our Archdiocese. We will continue to make
every effort to be good and trustworthy stewards of the financial
resources necessary to support the mission and ministries of our
Archdiocese, parishes and Catholic institutions.

God is the source of every blessing. All that we have we receive as
a gift. Awareness of our gifts instills gratitude and gratitude begets
generosity. Your generosity toward the Church is a hallmark of a
vibrant faith. As we continue to place our gifts of time, talent and
treasure at the service of others, we grow in faith even as we assist
our parishes, our Archdiocese and the universal Church to fulfill our
mission of evangelization and service in the world.

Thank you for your participation in this mission.
Sincerely yours in Christ,

Most Reverend Paul S. Coakley
Archbishop of Oklahoma City

Archdiocese of Oklahoma City Post Office Box 32180
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73123

405/721/5651

2010 Financial Audit of
the Archdiocese of

Oklahoma City
531 Couch Drive, Suite 200

Oklahoma City, OK 73102-2251
(405) 239-7961

Most Reverend Eusebius J. Beltran
Archbishop of Archdiocese of Oklahoma City

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position
of Archdiocese of Oklahoma City Pastoral Office Funds (the “Pastoral
Office”), as described in Note A, as of June 30, 2010, and the related
statements of activities, comprehensive income, and changes in net
assets, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial state-
ments are the responsibility of the Pastoral Office’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. The 2009 prior year summarized comparative in-
formation has been derived from the Pastoral Office’s June 30, 2009,
financial statements, and in our report dated Dec. 15, 2009, we
expressed a qualified opinion on those financial statements due to
matters in the second following paragraph.

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial state-
ment presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

As more fully described in Note F to the accompanying financial
statements, the statement of financial position reflects some, but not
all, land, buildings and equipment (properties) owned by the Pastoral
Office. In addition, the carrying amounts of certain properties are not
recorded at cost or fair value at the date of gift and no provisions for
depreciation or impairment, if any, have been made. Due to the nature
of the Pastoral Office’s records, we were unable to satisfy ourselves as
to the carrying amounts of such properties. In our opinion, except for
the effects of the matters discussed in the preceding paragraph, the
financial statements referred to above of Archdiocese of Oklahoma City
Pastoral Office Funds present fairly, in all material respects, the fi-
nancial position of the Pastoral Office at June 30, 2010, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
December 14, 2010

Independent Auditors Report
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Notes to Financial Statements 
Archdiocese of Oklahoma City Pastoral Office Funds

June 30, 2010
NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations: Archdiocese of Oklahoma City (the “Archdiocese”)

is a nonprofit organization that serves the parishes and parishioners of the
Roman Catholic Archdiocese of Oklahoma City. The Archdiocese includes 46
counties and over 100 parishes and missions located throughout central and
western Oklahoma. The Archdiocese charges each parish an annual assessment
and conducts annual development fund drives through the parishes in order to
fund operations. Services provided by the Archdiocese include various social
services, Catholic communications, priests’ support, and information about the
Catholic faith.

Basis of Financial Statements: The accompanying financial statements
include the accounts and funds of the Pastoral Office of the Archdiocese and cer-
tain budgeted departments and offices over which the Pastoral Office has
accounting and reporting responsibility (collectively, the “Pastoral Office”). The
Archdiocese has certain other Archdiocesan agencies, parishes, and organiza-
tions which operate within the Archdiocese; however, these organizations do not
operate within the Pastoral Office. Accordingly, the accounts of these other
agencies, parishes and organizations have not been included with the Pastoral
Office. As a result, the accompanying financial statements are not intended to
present the consolidated financial position and changes in net assets of the
Archdiocese as a whole.

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summa-
rized comparative information in total but not by net asset class. Such infor-
mation does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in con-
formity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
Pastoral Office’s financial statements for 2009 from which the summarized
information was derived.

Accounting Standards Codification: The Pastoral Office adopted the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”). The ASC does not alter current accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), but rather inte-
grates existing accounting standards with other authoritative guidance. The
ASC provides a single source of authoritative U.S. GAAP for nongovernmental
entities and supersedes all other previously issued non-SEC accounting and
reporting guidance. Adoption of the ASC did not have a significant effect on the
Pastoral Office’s financial statements.

Concentrations of Credit Risk: Financial instruments which potential-
ly subject the Pastoral Office to concentrations of credit risk consists of cash,
investment in securities (see Note B) and unsecured accounts, contributions,
and notes receivable (see Note E).

From time to time the Pastoral Office maintains cash balances in excess of
federal deposit insurance corporation (“FDIC”) limits. During fiscal year 2009,
FDIC limits were increased whereby all traditional type deposit accounts are
insured up to $250,000. Additionally, banks may participate in the FDIC’s
Transaction Account Guarantee Program (the “TAG Program”) whereby non-
interest bearing transaction accounts are 100% guaranteed by the FDIC
through December 31, 2012. Coverage under the TAG Program is in addition to
coverage provided to traditional type deposit accounts. Considering the
increased FDIC limits and the TAG Program, as of June 30, 2010, all of the
Pastoral Office’s cash balances were insured.

The Pastoral Office’s accounts receivable are unsecured and relate to
assessments to parishes throughout central and western Oklahoma.
Contributions receivable are unsecured and are due from various individuals in
the parishes served by the Pastoral Office. Credit losses are provided based on
periodic assessments of outstanding receivables, particularly those accounts
which are past due, as well as historical trends related to the collection of con-
tributions receivable. As of June 30, 2010, allowance for doubtful accounts

receivable and contributions receivable were $4,510,324 and $121,438, respec-
tively, and as of June 30, 2009 were $4,176,129 and $146,259, respectively. All
contributions and accounts receivable at June 30, 2010 and 2009 are expected
to be collected in one year, with the exception of accounts receivable from All
Saints Catholic School, Inc., which have no specified repayment terms and are
fully reserved in the statement of financial position. During 2010 and 2009,
respectively,All Saints made payments of $120,000 each year to the Archdiocese
towards its outstanding accounts receivable balance.

The Pastoral Office makes loans to parishes throughout central and west-
ern Oklahoma based on an evaluation of each parish’s financial condition and
other factors. Except as noted in Note E, the loans are generally unsecured. The
Pastoral Office’s periodic evaluation of credit losses is based on known and
inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s
ability to repay, the estimated value of the underlying collateral, if any, and cur-
rent economic conditions. The Pastoral Office’s periodic assessments of
accounts, notes and credit loss provision are based on the Pastoral Office’s best
estimates of amounts which may not be recoverable. As of June 30, 2010 and
2009, the Pastoral Office has established an allowance for estimated uncol-
lectible loans to parishes of $1,290,127 and $1,670,975, respectively, which
specifically relates to a loan made to All Saints Catholic School, Inc. during 2009
to fund the early redemption of certain revenue bonds (Note H).

Contributions Payable: Contributions payable consists of unconditional
amounts awarded, but not paid, to recipients. The contributions payable have
no formal payment terms and are reduced by a discount $38,520 at June 30,
2010 and 2009.

Net Assets: Net assets are classified into three categories: unrestricted net
assets which have no donor-imposed restrictions, temporarily restricted net
assets which have donor-imposed restrictions that will expire in the future, and
permanently restricted net assets which have donor-imposed restrictions which
do not expire.

Revenue Recognition: The Pastoral Office recognizes contributions,
including unconditional promises to give, as support in the period received. The
Pastoral Office records contributions received as permanently restricted, tem-
porarily restricted, or unrestricted net assets based on donor-imposed restric-
tions, if any. Assessment and fee income is recognized ratably over the period for
which the related assessments and fees relate, which generally corresponds
with Pastoral Office’s fiscal year.

Insurance premiums received by the Pastoral Office from the insured
parishes and organizations are recognized evenly over the contract period and
are shown net of premiums paid to third parties for reinsurance coverage.
Collections for the Archdiocesan Development Fund and assessments for
Central Archdiocesan Operations are generally received in advance of their sub-
sequent disbursement. Interest earned on these excess funds between the time
of receipt and disbursement is recorded as unrestricted revenue.

Expiration of Donor-Imposed Restrictions: The expiration of donor-
imposed restrictions on contributions or on endowment income is recognized in
the year in which the restriction expires, and at that time, the related resources
are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. Restrictions expire when the stipu-
lated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Contributions of land, buildings, and equip-
ment without donor stipulations concerning the use of such assets are reported
as increases in unrestricted net assets. Contributions of cash or other assets to
be used to acquire land, buildings, and equipment without such donor stipula-
tions are reported as increases in temporarily restricted net assets. Restrictions
are considered to be released at the time of acquisition. Temporarily restricted
contributions are recorded in the year the contribution or unconditional pledge
is  received. Net  assets  are  released  from  donor  restrictions  by  incurring 

continued on page 16
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Notes
continued from page 15

expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or by occurrence of events speci-
fied by the donors or by the change of restrictions specified by the donors. The
amount of net assets identified as released from donor restrictions includes
any amount released whether received in the current or prior fiscal years.
Income Taxes: The Archdiocese, as an agency and/or instrumentality of the
United States Catholic Conference, is exempt from federal and state income
taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions: The Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued guidance on the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes. The Pastoral Office adopted this new guidance for the year ended June
30, 2010. Management evaluated the Pastoral Office’s tax positions and con-
cluded that the Pastoral Office had taken no uncertain tax positions that
require adjustment to the financial statements to comply with the provisions
of this guidance. With few exceptions, the Pastoral Office is no longer subject
to income tax examinations by the U.S. federal state or local tax authorities
before 2006.

Investments: All investments received by gift or bequest are recorded at
fair value in the statement of financial position on the date received. If fair
value is not determinable on the date received, the asset received by gift or
bequest is recorded at nominal value. Investments in corporate stocks and
bonds are marked to market at year end. Investments in real estate and com-
mercial properties are carried at the value initially recorded unless there has
been an indication of either (a) impairment of value considered to be other than
temporary, which would result in a write-down to fair value or (b) increased
market value, which would result in a write-up to fair value. Unrestricted
gains and losses on investments are recorded as increases or decreases in
unrestricted net assets. Unrealized gains and losses are recorded as tem-
porarily restricted and permanently restricted net assets in accordance with
donor specifications.

Self Insurance Plan: The Pastoral Office has a self-insured plan (the
“Plan”) to serve the property and casualty insurance needs of the Archdiocese
and its parishes and organizations (collectively, the “Insured Organizations”).
The Pastoral Office was also self-insured for health and accident during fiscal
year 2009. Premiums received by the Pastoral Office from the Insured
Organizations are recognized evenly over the contract period and are shown
net of premiums paid to third parties for reinsurance coverage. Unearned
insurance premiums representing the portion of the premiums applicable to
the unexpired period of the contract are included with liabilities in the accom-
panying statement of financial position. A plan administrator has been
retained to oversee the administration of the Plan based upon guidelines
established by the Pastoral Office. The Plan consists of the following coverages:

Assets
Cash 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for 
doubtful accounts of $4,510,3249 and
$4,176,129 at June 30, 2010 and 2009.
Contributions receivable, net of allowance 
for doubtful accounts $121,438 and 
$146,259 at June 30, 2010 and 2009
Investments (Notes B and C)
Notes receivable, net of allowance for 
doubtful accounts of $1,290,127 and
$1,670,975 at June 30, 2010 and 2009.
Land, buildings, and equipment (Note F)
Other
Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable and other liabilities 
Contributions payable, net of discount 
Investments managed for related parties
(Notes C and D) 
Accrued insurance claims 
Bank borrowings (Note G)
Accrued pension benefit cost 
Total liabilities 

Net assets:
Unrestricted:
Designated and operating (Notes J and K) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
(Notes I and J) 
Net investment in property and
equipment and other (Note J)
Total unrestricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted (Notes J and K)
Permanently restricted (Notes J and K)
Total net assets 
Total liabilities and net assets 
See accompanying notes.

Archdiocese of Oklahoma City
Pastoral Office Funds

Statement of Financial Position
June 30

2010           2009

Property and Casualty: Covers claims related to property, general
liability, professional liability, crime, automobile, boiler and machinery,
workers’ compensation, and inland marine. The plan administrator uti-
lizes a third party to process and administer claims under the Plan. The
Insured Organizations are billed premiums annually by the plan admin-
istrator. As claims are incurred, the Plan is required to pay amounts of
such claims up to the deductibles (i.e., individual claim stop-loss limits),
which vary by policy year.

For the policy period ending June 30, 2010, the individual deductible
levels were (a) $125,000 on property and casualty claims, (b) $50,000 in
general liability claims, including crime coverage and directors and offi-
cers, and (c) $125,000 on workers’ compensation claims. Eligible claims in
excess of the deductibles are covered by various reinsurance policies. All
property and casualty claims (excluding workers’ compensation) are lim-
ited to annual aggregate of $650,000 per year after which the reinsurance
will cover all costs.

Health and Accident: Covered medical expenses of the covered
employees of the Insured Organizations based upon the terms estab-
lished by the Archdiocese under the Health and Accident Benefit Plan

(the “Health Plan”). The plan administrator utilized a third party to
process and administer claims under the Health Plan. The Insured
Organizations were billed monthly by the plan administrator for their
employees’ participation in the Plan. The terms of the Health Plan
required the claimant to pay a deductible of $500 (in network) or $1,000
(out of network) each plan year (the claimant’s deductible) and 20% (in
network) or 40% (out of network) of the remaining difference of each eli-
gible claim (the claimant’s coinsurance percentage) up to a maximum
coinsurance claim of $10,000.

The claimant’s deductible and coinsurance percentage varied, aspre-
viously described, depending on the claimant’s insurance elections.

continued on page 18

$1,900,457

763,022

971,324
60,383,658

13,716,847
43,150,761

68,863
$120,954,932

$1,065,172
606,480

31,022,071
2,420,395

788,000  
9,303,497

45,205,615

32,061,251

(3,634,138)

43,150,761
71,577,874

784,049
3,387,394

75,749,317
$120,954,932

$ 940,285

1,715,625

894,319
67,634,411

12,257,573
43,540,515

63,588
$127,046,316

$ 815,451
261,480

30,963,286
611,049

—
7,965,206

40,616,472

38,247,511

(1,636,365)

43,540,515
80,151,661

922,959
5,355,224

86,429,844
$127,046,316
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Revenues, gains and other support:
Contributions and collections:

Archdiocesan Development Fund 
Assessment for Central Archdiocesan Operations 
Fees and revenues of budgeted departments and offices
Pilgrimage 
Priest Medical collections   
Property additions by Bishop McGuinness Catholic High School (Note F)
Bequests and other 

Insurance premiums earned (net of premiums ceded of  $7,051,467 in 2010 and $2,415,074 in 2009)
Oil, gas, and royalty income 
Interest and dividend income:

Investments 
Notes receivable 

Gain (Losses) on investments
Gain on sale of assets 
Other income 

Net assets released from restrictions 
Total revenues, gains, and other support 

Expenses:
Budgeted departments and offices:

Pastoral Center 
Business Office 
Safe Environment
Archdiocesan newspaper (Sooner Catholic) 
Office of Christian Education 
Youth Ministry 
Office of Family Life 
Hispanic Ministry 
Our Lady of Guadalupe 
Office of Planning, Stewardship, and Development 
Ministry to Priests, Permanent Deacons and Clergy Education
Hospital Ministry 
Tribunal 
Office of Worship and Spiritual Life 
National Conference of Catholic Bishops – United States Catholic Conference
Priests’ welfare, retirement, and disability 
Property taxes and maintenance 

Total budgeted departments and offices 

Sponsored programs and other subsidies:
Insurance claims and claims settlement expense

(net of reinsurance recoveries of $0 in 2010 and $112,386 in 2009)
Administrative costs of self-insurance plan 
Pilgrimage
Campus Ministry 
Ecumenical & Interreligous
Contributions made to others 
Seminarian programs 
Net periodic pension benefit cost (Note I)
Reversal of debt guarantee 
PDLF investment pool interest expense
Other 

Total sponsored programs and other subsidies 
Total expenses 

Change in net assets before other comprehensive income (loss)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (Note I)

Actuarial gain (loss)
Amortization of prior service cost

Change in net assets 
Net assets at beginning of year 
Net assets at end of year 

(See accompanying notes.)

Archdiocese of Oklahoma City Pastoral Office Funds
Statements of Activities, Comprehensive Loss and Changes in Net Assets

Year ended June 30, 2010 (Summarized totals for year ended June 30, 2009)

$ 2,796,179
1,612,443
1,466,734

—
—

404,966
825,289

1,655,899
392,052

1,398,970
294,520

3,755,931
444,752
583,190

15,630,925
231,954

15,862,879

964,499
776,982
93,599

413,835
439,640
479,345
178,199
201,274
281,258
116,451
156,042
203,464
190,323
138,199
36,687
50,541

101,837
4,822,175

849,316
62,232
98,488
90,000
13,500

540,577
623,086

1,107,585
—

399,882
680,024

4,464,690
9,286,865

6,576,014

1,789,043
208,730

8,573,787
71,577,874

$ 80,151,661

$ —
—
—

83,460
88,694

—
175,756

—
—

8,564
—

14,390
—
—

370,864
(231,954)

138,910  

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

138,910

—
—

138,910
784,049

$ 922,959

$             —
—
—
—
—
—

1,785,966
—
—

33,399
—

148,465
—
—

1,967,830
—

1,967,830

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

1,967,830

—
—

1,967,830
3,387,394

$ 5,355,224

$3,003,154
1,566,179
1,436,159

—
66,853

715,175
1,130,353
5,535,919

473,552

1,738,573
425,817

(5,787,768)
—

268,364
10,572,330

—
10,572,330

1,021,750
906,055
59,174

420,282
461,381
432,069
180,513
224,925
262,763
124,486
109,303
203,340
170,647
161,854
34,215
41,201
75,845

4,889,803

$5,530,086
501,743

—
100,000
13,825

455,931
445,795

1,080,382
(120,453)

542,313
622,913

9,172,535
14,062,338

(3,490,008)

(211,294)
208,730

(3,492,572)
79,241,889

$75,749,317

$ 2,796,179
1,612,443
1,466,734

83,460
88,694

404,966
2,787,011
1,655,899

392,052

1,440,933
294,520

3,918,786
444,752
583,190

17,969,619
—

17,969,619

964,499
776,982
93,599

413,835
439,640
479,345
178,199
201,274
281,258
116,451
156,042
203,464
190,323
138,199
36,687
50,541

101,837
4,822,175

849,316
62,232
98,488
90,000
13,500

540,577
623,086

1,107,585
—

399,882
680,024

4,464,690
9,286,865

8,682,754

1,789,043
208,730

10,680,527
75,749,317

$ 86,429,844

Unrestricted
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Permanently
Restricted 

2010
Total 

2009
Total 
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$ 10,680,527

(4,572,583)

(404,966)
—

1,107,585
(444,752)

(1,997,773)

(952,603)
77,005

(249,721)
(345,000)

(1,809,346)
—

(448,103)
640,270

(3,371,183)
4,830,457

(29,364,427)
26,686,257

(80,900)
540,864

5,275
(753,657)

(58,785)
(788,000)
(846,785)
(960,172)
1,900,457
$ 940,285

$ 399,882

continued from page 16
The Health Plan paid for the remaining 80% or 60% of eligible claims
between the claimant’s deductible and the maximum coinsurance claim
amount of $10,000. The amounts of an eligible claim exceeding $10,000
were paid 100% by the Health Plan up to a maximum eligible claim of
$125,000 for calendar year 2009. The amounts of eligible claims exceeding
$125,000 for calendar year 2009 were paid 100% by reinsurance companies.

Effective July 1, 2009, the self-insurance Health Plan was terminat-
ed with the Archdiocese switching to a fully insured plan provided
through a third party insurer; however, the Pastoral Office continues to
bill Insured Organizations and remit insurance premiums to the third
party insurer (i.e., similar to a reinsurance arrangement). The financial
statements reflect the collections from Insured Organizations, net of
amounts paid to the insurance company, as insurance premiums rev-
enues. The Health Plan continues to pay eligible claims incurred during
the Health Plan’s effective policy periods during fiscal year 2010. Eligible
claims were accepted until June 30, 2010. In connection with the termi-
nation of the Health Plan, the Archdiocese did not accrue any costs as all
eligible claims were accounted for and no material claims were unpaid as
of June 30, 2010. Any additional payments relate to minor adjustments
to claims and will be expensed as incurred.

Notes

$(3,492,572)

6,890,412

(715,175)
(120,453)
1,080,382

—
2,564

(268,161)
496

(10,432)
(601,825)
(95,880)

(2,246,522)

(1,014,091)
(591,257)

(261,125)
4,905,096

(36,942,013)
29,456,852

(83,041)
—

3,307
(2,920,924)

3,908,401
(1,212,000)

2,696,401
(815,780)
2,716,237

$1,900,457

$604,255

Archdiocese of Oklahoma City
Pastoral Office Funds
Statements of Cash Flows

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Increase in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net 

cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments 
Contributions of property from Bishop McGuinness 

Catholic High School 
Provisions for (reversal of) debt guarantee  
Net periodic pension cost 
Gain on disposals of equipment 
Other comprehensive (income) loss 
Net change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts recivable, net of increase in allowance for

doubtful accounts 
Contributions receivable
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Contributions payable
Accrued insurance claims
Debt guarantee

Accured pension benefit cost, net of amounts included 
in other comprehensive income
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Investing Activities
Advances for notes receivable 
Collections on notes receivable 
Purchases of investments 
Proceeds from sales of investments 
Capital expenditures  
Proceeds from disposal of equipment and land
Other 
Net cash used in investing activities 

Financing Activities
Investments managed for related parties (net)
Net bank payments
Net Cash provided by (used in) Financing Activites
Net change in cash
Cash at beginning of year 
Cash at end of year 
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest 

See accompanying notes.

Year ended June 30
2009

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by
observable market data; and
Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair
value measurement.

2010

As discussed above, the Pastoral Office enters into certain reinsurance con-
tracts in an effort to reduce the loss that may arise from catastrophes or other
events that cause unfavorable underwriting results. Reinsurance contracts do
not relieve the Pastoral Office from its obligation to policyholders. Failure of
reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in losses to the Pastoral Office;
consequently, allowances may be established for any amounts deemed uncol-
lectible (none as of June 30, 2010 or 2009).

Fair Value Measurements: During 2009, the Pastoral Office adopted
ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. Topic 820 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands dis-
closures about fair value measurements. Fair value is defined as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Topic 820
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation tech-
niques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. The following is a
brief description of those three levels:

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis
include investments and investments managed for related parties (see Note C).

The FASB continues to clarify and improve disclosures related to Topic
820 and as a result, the Pastoral Office implemented, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820): Investments in Certain Entities
That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent) which provides
amendments to and expands disclosures for the fair value measurement of
investments in certain entities that calculate net asset value per share (or its
equivalent) for the year ended June 30, 2010. Adoption of this new guidance
did not have a significant impact on the Pastoral Office’s financial state-
ments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements: In January 2010, the FASB
issued amended standards that require additional fair value disclosures.
These amended standards require disclosures about inputs and valuation
techniques used to measure fair value as well as disclosures about signifi-
cant transfers, beginning in 2011. Additionally, these amended standards
require presentation of disaggregated activity within the reconciliation for
fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3),
beginning in 2012. The adoption of these standards is not expected to have a

significant impact on the Pastoral Office’s financial statements. Use of
Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires man-
agement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications: Certain amounts in the 2009 summarized comparative
information have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Subsequent Events: Management has evaluated subsequent events
through December 14, 2010, the date the financial statements were available to
be issued. See Note L for a discussion of subsequent event matters.

continued on page 19
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Money funds 
Corporate bonds and notes 
Certificate of deposet
Government debt securities 
Equity securities 
Domestic
International
Investment pool (A)
Real estate  
Total investments 

2009
$12,448,333

7,992,374
—

8,386,503

19,713,308
4,842,762

—
— 

$53,383,280

$144,469
—

233,391
—

—
—

6,122,518
500,000

$7,000,378

$12,592,802
7,992,374

233,391
8,386,503

19,713,308
4,842,762
6,122,518

500,000
$60,383,658

Money funds 
Corporate bonds and notes 
Certificate of deposet
Government debt securities 
Equity securities 
Domestic
International
Investment pool (A)
Real estate  
Total investments 

2010
Held by

Investment
Managers  (B) Other

3,501,149
10,435,743
2,965,126

16,629,442

20,865,229
3,392,079

—
—

$57,788,768

$325,818
—

238,133
—

—
—

8,781,692
500,000

$9,845,643

$3,826,967
10,435,743
3,203,259

16,629,442

20,865,229
3,392,079
8,781,692

500,000
$67,634,411

Total

Seminary Burses Fund (A) 
Joseph Danne Fund (B) 
Archdiocesan Endowment Fund (C):

Operating activity 
Archdiocesan Pastoral Center 
Archbishop’s residence 
Our Lady of Victory 
(for maternity services) 
Mount St. Mary High School 
Catholic school support 
Tuition for Bombing Survivors 
Disaster education 
Disaster relief 
Pastoral ministry 
Crested Butte 
Salatka & Zagar
Donald Mileur 
St. Joachim Chapel
Maloney Trust
Youth camp 

Total Archdiocesan Endowment Fund 
St. Joseph’s Children’s Fund  
Land, Buildings, and Equipment Fund 
Operating Fund:

Self-insurance fund
Retirement benefits 

Total Operating Fund 
Total net assets

$ — 
– 

— 
— 
— 

— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
—
— 
— 
— 
—
—
— 
—
—
—

—  
(1,636,365) 
(1,636,365)

$(1,636,365) 

$ — 
— 

— 
— 
— 

— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
—

—
—
— 

43,540,515

— 
— 
—  

$43,540,515

$ —
— 

—
—
—

—
—

246,249
269,601

— 
— 
—
— 

10,702
110,866
285,541

—
— 

922,959
—
—

—  
— 
—

$922,959

$ 782,841
2,597,193

— 
— 
— 

— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 

189,224
— 
— 
— 
— 

1,785,966
— 

1,975,190
—
— 

— 
—
— 

$5,355,224

$ 3,198,929
3,436,347

20,198,300
2,847,313
1,564,952

609,633
1,875,196
2,086,761

269,601
12,548
2,716

161,819
33,950
10,702

110,866
285,541

1,778,285
482,028

32,330,211
4,156,045

43,540,515

4,541,087
(4,773,290)

(232,203)
$86,429,844

Designated
and

Operating

Accumulated
Other

Compre- 
hensive Loss

Net
Investment

in Land,
Buildings &
Equipment

Tempo-
rarily

Restricted

Perma-
nently

Restricted Total

NOTE J — NET ASSETS 2010

$2,416,088
839,154

20,198,300
2,847,313
1,564,952

609,633
1,875,196
1,840,512

—
12,548
2,716

(27,405)
33,950

—
—
—

(7,681)
482,028

29,432,062
4,156,045

—

4,541,087
(3,136,925)

1,404,162
$38,247,511

Unrestricted

NOTE B--INVESTMENTS
Investments are comprised of the following as of June 30:

(A) The investment pool represents
the Pastoral Office’s proportionate share of
an investment pool which is the custodial
responsibility of The Catholic Foundation
of Oklahoma, Inc. (the “Foundation”).
Pooled fund investments are held and
managed by a trust company affiliated
with a major regional bank which has
investment authority over the investment
transactions subject to investment policies
which are established and periodically
updated by the Board of Directors of the
Foundation. The investments pool invest-
ments are generally comprised of money
funds, government debt securities, certifi-
cates of deposits, and equity securities.

(B) Investments held by investment
managers consist of funds deposited with
professional investment managers which
have discretionary investment authority
over investment transactions subject to
investment policies which are established
and periodically updated by the Pastoral
Office. The Pastoral Office has invest-
ments in various investment securities,
which in general, are exposed to various
risks, such as interest rate, credit and
overall market volatility risks. As a result,
significant fluctuations in fair value of
investments may occur in periods subse-
quent to June 30, 2010.

NOTE C--FAIR VALUE MEA-
SUREMENTS

The Pastoral Office uses quoted mar-
ket prices to determine the fair value of an

asset or liability when available. If quoted market prices are not available, the
Pastoral Office determines fair value using valuation techniques that use mar-
ket-based or independently-sourced market data, such as interest rates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of assets and liabilities in the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, contributions receiv-
able, accounts payable and accrued liabilities (including accrued insur-
ance claims) – the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to their
short maturity.

Investments – the fair value for investments in securities is deter-
mined based upon quoted market values for marketable securities.
Generally, quoted market prices are available for cash and cash equiva-
lents, common and preferred stocks, and most mutual funds and as such
are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. Other investments,
such as money funds,pooled investment funds (with no withdrawal
restrictions), government and corporate bonds and bank certificates of
deposit are classified within Level 2 of the hierarchy due to their propri-
etary nature. Securities classified as Level 2 are independently valued by
the fund manager.The fair value of investments managed by the Catholic
Foundation is based on the Archdiocese’s proportionate share of the
investment pool managed by the Catholic Foundation for the Archdiocese
and other third parties. Fair value for certificates of deposit is determined
using discounted cash flow analyses based on current market rates for

continued on page 20
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deposits with similar remaining maturities. Fair value for real estate is
determined primarily based upon independent appraisals or contractual
sales prices. Due to the significant unobservable inputs required to esti-
mate the expected future cash receipts from the real estate, real estate
held as investment is classified as Level 3 in the hierarchy.

Notes receivable – the carrying amounts approximate fair value due
to the notes receivable carrying a variable rate of interest that is indexed
to the two-year U.S. Treasury Notes.

Contributions payable – the fair value for contributions payable is
derived by discounting future payments using a market discount rate.
The carrying amount approximates fair value.

Investments managed for related parties – the fair value for invest-
ments managed for related parties are derived in the same manner as
investments. Investments managed for related parties are comprised of
Level 1 and Level 2 investments. As these funds represent pooled fund
investments (with no withdrawal restrictions), they are classified as
Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

Bank borrowings – the carrying amount approximates fair value due
to the borrowings carrying a variable rate of interest.

Investments:
Money funds 
Certificate of deposet 
Equity securities 
Domestic
International

Corporate bonds and notes
Goverment debt securities
Real estate
Pooled investment funds
Total assets carried at 
fair value

Investments managed for
related parties

Total liabilites carried at 
fair value

As of June 30, 2010
Level 1 Level 2

$ —
—

20,865,229
3,392,079

—
—
—
—

$24,257,308

$ —

$ —

$3,826,967
3,203,259

—
—

10,435,743
16,629,442

—
8,781,692

$42,877,103

$30,963,286

$30,963,286

$ —
—

—
—
—
—

500,000
—

500,000

—

—

Level 3

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are clas-
sified within the fair value hierarchy as follows:

$3,826,967
3,203,259

20,865,229
3,392,079

10,435,743
16,629,442

500,000
8,781,692

$67,634,411

$30,963,286

$30,963,286

Total

As of June 30, 2009

Investments:
Money funds 
Certificate of deposet 
Equity securities 
Domestic
International

Corporate bonds and notes
Goverment debt securities
Real estate
Pooled investment funds
Total assets carried at 
fair value

Investments managed for
related parties

Total liabilites carried at 
fair value

Level 1 Level 2

$ —
—

19,713,308
4,842,762

—
—
—
—

$24,556,070

$—

$ —

$12,592,802
233,391

—
—

7,992,374
8,386,503

—
6,122,518

$35,327,588

$31,022,071

$31,022,071

$ —
—

—
—
—
—

500,000
—

$500,000

—

—

Level 3

$12,592,802
233,391

19,713,308
4,842,762
7,992,374
8,386,503

500,000
6,122,518

$60,383,658

$31,022,071

$31,022,071

Total

The Pastoral Office’s investments in certain entities that calculate net asset
value (“NAV”) per share for which there is not a readily determinable fair mar-

ket value include the pooled investment funds which are discussed in Note B.
The Archdiocese only has one investment classified as a Level 3 investment in
the fair value hierarchy, which is real estate valued at $500,000. There were no
changes in Level 3 investments during the years ending June 30, 2010 and
2009.
NOTE D--RELATED PARTIES

Investments include investments managed for related parties. The Pastoral
Office, in a fiduciary capacity, manages the following investments for parties
associated with the Archdiocese as of June 30:

(A) PDLF is an investment pool of funds deposited by the Pastoral Office
and other members of the Archdiocese. PDLF was established to provide financ-
ing to defined members of the Archdiocese and is administered by the Pastoral
Office and a third-party administrator. Funds deposited to PDLF earn interest
at a rate based on the monthly average rate of twoyear U.S.Treasury Notes plus
0.25% (1.04% at June 30, 2010), and loans (Note E) from PDLF bear interest at
a floating rate adjusted monthly based on the average rate of two year U.S.
Treasury Notes plus 1.25% (2.04% at June 30, 2010). The policy of PDLF is to
limit outstanding loans to a range of approximately 75% to 90% of the total
PDLF assets with the remaining assets being invested in cash or equity/fixed
income securities.

Deposits to PDLF are guaranteed by the Pastoral Office. As of June 30,
2010 and 2009, PDLF had assets of $33,964,669 and $34,798,746, respectively,
consisting of funds deposited by the Pastoral Office and other members of the
Archdiocese, and had loans outstanding to members of the Archdiocese, net of
allowance for loan to All Saints Catholic School of $1,290,127 as of June 30,
2010 and $1,670,975 as of June 30, 2009, of $11,721,781 and $12,325,669,
respectively (Note E).

NOTE E--NOTES RECEIVABLE

continued on page 21

Archdiocesan Parish Deposit 
and Loan Fund (“PDLF”) (A)
Associated Catholic Charities
Resurrection Cemetery, Inc.
St. Ann’s Home, Inc.
Bishop McGuinness

2009

$25,298,973
790,429

3,548,206
502,397
882,066

$31,022,071

2010

$24,481,725
880,957

4,028,671
570,427

1,001,506
$30,963,286

2010 

$ —

—

535,792

11,721,781

$12,257,573

2009

$74,053

788,000

529,125

12,325,669

$13,716,847

Mortgage note from St. Ann's Home, Inc.
that provides for monthly payments of $9,353,
including interest equal to PDLF loans (Note
D) (effective rate of 2.20% as of June 30, 2009),
until April 2025.

Note receivable from Bishop McGuinness
High School for the construction of the Gym
that provides for monthly interest payments
equal to the two-year Treasury note rate plus
1.25% (effective rate of 2.20% as of June 30,
2009), until October 2009.

Notes receivable from member parishes
with balances outstanding as of June 30, 2010
ranging in amounts from approximately
$60,000 to $256,000, with interest rates of 0%
and maturities in installments through July
2020.

Notes receivable from member parishes
related to borrowings from PDLF (Note D)
maturing at various dates through 2036.



April 3, 2011    Sooner Catholic 21●●

Notes
continued from page 20

As of June 30, 2010, management believes an allowance for uncol-
lectible notes is necessary for a loan made to All Saints Catholic Schools
(“All Saints”) during fiscal year 2009 as part of the early redemption of All
Saints revenue bonds, which had been guaranteed by the Pastoral Office.
The allowance as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 totals $1,290,127 and
$1,670,975, respectively.

NOTE F--LAND, BUILDINGS, AND EQUIPMENT
All land, buildings, and equipment (properties) are not recorded as

required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. Historically, the accounts of the Pastoral Office have reflected
some, but not all, properties owned by the Pastoral Office. The carrying
amounts of the Pastoral Center and Bishop McGuinness Catholic High
School reflect replacement values as determined as of December 31, 1967
plus the historical cost of additions to the buildings subsequent to 1967.
Although other recorded properties are stated at cost, no provisions have
been made for depreciation or impairment, if any, because detail records
are not sufficiently comprehensive to support the required computations.
Accordingly, the effects on the financial statements cannot be determined;
however, the effects are believed to be material.

Land, buildings, and equipment recorded consist of the following as of
June 30:

NOTE G--BANK BORROWINGS
The Pastoral Office has a revolving line of credit (the “Revolver”) with a

bank that provides for borrowings up to $2,350,000 through March 31, 2011.
Outstanding borrowings under the Revolver will bear interest at the Two-Year
Treasury Note Constant Maturity Index plus 1%. The Pastoral Office is
required to make monthly payments of accrued interest with all outstanding
borrowings due in March 2011. The Revolver contains several financial
covenants which require, among other things (a) maintenance of $20 million of
unrestricted and unencumbered liquid net assets, (b) maintenance of $30 mil-
lion of unrestricted net assets, and (c) limitation to $50 million of aggregate
funded and contingent debt.

NOTE H--CONTINGENCIES
The Pastoral Office is contingently

liable as guarantor for certain bank debts
of its member parishes (for capital proj-
ects) and of its priests (for automobiles). In
the event the debtors fail to make the
required principal and interest payments
on the bank debt, the Pastoral Office would
be required to make such payments. The
total bank debt (collateralized by real
estate and automobiles) for which the
Pastoral Office is guarantor as of June 30,
2010 is as follows:

Additionally, St. Ann’s has obligations
as of June 30, 2010 related to a revenue
bond in the amount of $13,220,000
(payable in annual installments ranging
from $400,000 to $945,000 plus interest at
rates ranging from 4.5% to 5.0%, matur-
ing in 2028), that is guaranteed by the 

continued on page 22

Seminary Burses Fund (A) 
Joseph Danne Fund (B) 
Archdiocesan Endowment Fund (C):

Operating activity 
Archdiocesan Pastoral Center 
Archbishop’s residence 
Our Lady of Victory 
(for maternity services) 
Mount St. Mary High School 
Catholic school support 
Tuition for Bombing Survivors 
Disaster education 
Disaster relief 
Pastoral ministry 
Crested Butte 
Salatka & Zagar
Donald Mileur   
Elderly support 
Youth camp 

Total Archdiocesan Endowment Fund 
St. Joseph’s Children’s Fund  
Land, Buildings, and Equipment Fund 
Operating Fund:

Self-insurance fund
Retirement benefits 

Total Operating Fund 
Total net assets

$              -
-

-
-
-

-
- 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
(3,634,138)
(3,634,138)

$(3,634,138)

$             -
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

43,150,761

-
-
-

$43,150,761

$             -
-

-
-
-

-
-

253,428
306,358

-
-

1,882
-

10,574
102,279
109,528

-
784,049

-
-

-
-
-

$784,049

$782,841
2,433,585

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

170,968
-
-
-
-
-

170,968
-
-

-
-
-

$3,387,394

$3,308,222
3,196,798

16,850,247
2,592,049
1,457,042

549,040
1,743,757
1,663,555

306,358
12,397
2,684

172,850
30,789
10,574

102,279
109,528
414,977

25,844,633
3,667,200

43,150,761

2,703,776
(6,295,566)
(3,591,790)

$75,749,317

Designated
and

Operating

Accumulated
Other

Compre- 
hensive Loss

Net
Investment

in Land,
Buildings &
Equipment

(Note E)

Tempo-
rarily

Restricted

Perma-
nently

Restricted Total

NOTE J — NET ASSETS 2009

$2,525,381
763,213

16,850,247
2,592,049
1,457,042

549,040
1,743,757
1,410,127

-
12,397
2,684

-
30,789

-
-
-

414,977
25,063,109
3,667,200

-

2,703,776
(2,661,428)

42,348
$32,061,251

Unrestricted

2009
$7,663,739 
22,893,677 
4,904,394 
3,405,340 

496,308
2,659,640
1,127,663

$43,150,761

2010
$7,673,065
23,298,643
4,904,394
3,450,464

496,308
2,575,720
1,141,921

$43,540,515

Land and buildings:
The Pastoral Center
Bishop McGuinness Catholic High School
Youth Camp
Other
Archbishop’s residence

Land held for parish sites and future development
Furniture and equipment
Total land, buildings, and equipment

St. Mark the Evangelist
Church (Norman,
Oklahoma), 7.55% mortgage
note payable to bank, due in
monthly installments of
$32,923 until October 2011
when the outstanding bal-
ance becomes due (remaining
payments total $4.1 million
as of June 30, 2010). See Note
L for subsequent payment
and new note receivable
under the PDLF.

Other 
Total bank debt guaran-

teed (not included in the
accompanying statements of

$3,544,031
89,707

$3,633,738
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Archdiocese. Remaining payments (net of reserve fund balances) total
approximately $20,056,000 as of June 30, 2010.

During fiscal year 2009, the Archdiocese early redeemed the All Saints rev-
enue bonds for a payment of $2,309,972, which resulted in the elimination of the
debt guarantee liability. Of the amounts paid by the Pastoral Office on behalf of
All Saints, $393,443 was added to All Saints accounts receivable balance and
$1,916,349 was established as a note receivable from All Saints as part of the
PDLF to be payable over five years.

Based on the advice of legal counsel, the Pastoral Office believes that reso-
lution of all outstanding litigation involving the Pastoral Office will not have a
material adverse effect on its financial statements, however, these matters are
inherently difficult to predict with any degree of certainty and material future
claims are possible.

NOTE I--PENSION BENEFIT PLANS
The Pastoral Office has an unfunded noncontributory defined benefit pen-

sion plan that covers all incardinated priests (the “Pension Plan”). The priests
are eligible to receive pension benefits upon reaching their normal retirement
age of 75; however, early or late retirement may be granted by the Archbishop
in specific instances (average retirement age is 70). The pension benefits
include (1) retired priests receive the same salary as active priests, adjusted
every June for inflation; (2) $1,000 per year for personal expenses; (3) month-
ly rent subsidies of $500; and (4) nursing home care provided at no cost; how-
ever, monthly pension payments are reduced to $100. The Pension Plan is cur-
rently funded by assessments to parishes, monthly contributions from the
Pastoral Office, and receipts of discretionary contributions from parishioners.
The Pastoral Office uses a June 30 measurement date for the Pension Plan.

In addition to the Pension Plan’s assets segregated in a trust for the bene-
fit of future payments under the Pension Plan, the Pastoral Office has inter-
nally designated $3,192,301 and $3,008,319 as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, of its unrestricted net assets for funding of the Pension Plan’s obli-
gations.

The accumulated benefit obligation was $10,227,721 and $11,150,459 as of
June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. In fiscal years 2010 and 2009, respec-
tively, the Archdiocese contributed $448,103 and $1,014,091 to segregated
Pension Plan assets held in the Pension Plan trust. During 2010 and 2009,
respectively, the Pension Plan paid $842,389 and $833,483 in benefits.

During fiscal year 2010 and 2009, the Pastoral Office recognized $208,730
of unrecognized prior service cost as a component of net periodic benefit cost.
For the year ending June 30, 2011, the Pastoral Office expects to recognize
$208,730 of prior service costs as components of net periodic pension cost.

Weighted average assumptions used to determine pension benefit obliga-
tions and net periodic pension benefit cost as of June 30 are as follows:

The Pastoral Office’s expected long-term return on plan assets assumption
was derived from an analysis conducted by the Pastoral Office’s actuaries. The
analysis included a review of the asset allocation strategy, anticipated future
long-term performance of individual asset classes, risks and correlations for
each of the asset classes that comprise the asset mix. While the analysis gives
appropriate consideration to recent performance and historical returns, the
assumption is primarily a long-term, prospective rate.

The fair values of the Pastoral Office’s pension plan assets weighted-aver-
age asset allocations at June 30, 2010, by asset category are as follows:

In setting investment policies and strategies, the ability of the selected
investment mix to fund the pension plan liabilities effectively, meet the long-
term asset return target of 7% and align the selected mix with the risk toler-
ance of the plan’s fiduciaries were taken into account. The strategic mix has
reduced exposure to an equity market risk and increased allocation to asset
classes which are not highly correlated as well as asset classes where manage-
ment has historically generated excess returns and places greater emphasis on
manager skills to produce excess return while employing various risk mitiga-
tion strategies to reduce volatility.

The Pastoral Office expects to contribute $535,662 to the Pension Plan in
fiscal year 2011.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments – The following benefit payments,
which reflect expected future service as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

The Pastoral Office also sponsors a 403(b) Church Retirement Plan (the
“403(b) Plan”). The 403(b) Plan covers substantially all Archdiocesan or affiliat-
ed Catholic organizations’ lay employees. Each affiliated Catholic organization
contributes a discretionary amount (3% of the participant’s salary for fiscal years
2010 and 2009). In addition, organizations match the first 4% of employee con-
tributions at 50% of such amount. New participants become vested in six years
(20% per year after the second year of service). Expenses for the Pastoral Office’s
portion of the 403(b) Plan were not significant in fiscal years 2010 or 2009.

NOTE J--NET ASSETS
(A) The Seminary Burses Fund provides financial resources for seminarians.

continued on page 23

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Years 2016-2020

$ 722,984
664,307
663,399
605,623
549,878

2,564,470
$ 5,770,661

Plan assets at fair value
Less actuarial present value of projected benefit
obligations 
Unfunded status 

Unrecognized net actuarial loss 
Unrecognized prior service cost 
Net amount recognized 

2010
$ 3,143,329

11,108,535
(7,965,206)

1,022,702
613,663

(6,328,841)

2009
$ 3,197,743

12,501,240
(9,303,497)

2,811,745
822,393

$(5,669,359)

Amounts reflected in the statments of financial position:

Accrued pension benefit cost
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

2009
$(9,303,497)

3,634,138
$(5,669,359)

2010
$(7,965,206)

1,636,365
$(6,328,841)

Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase
Rate of nursing home care increase
Expected long-term return on plan assets

2010
6%
4%
3%
7%

2009
6%
5%
3%
8%

Investments:
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity securities
Common stocks
Pooled equity funds

Fixed income securities
Corporate bonds
Goverment debt securities
Pooled fixed income funds

Plan assets carried at 
fair value

Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2010

Level 1 Level 2

$ 166,534

1,082,651
675,896

—
—

895,153

$ 2,820,234

$ —

—
—

111,732
211,363

—

$ 323,095

$ —

—
—

—
—
—

—

Level 3

$ 166,534

1,082,651
675,896

111,732
211,363
895,153

$ 3,143,329

Total
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Notes
continued from page 22  

Earnings in excess of disbursements are retained in the
fund.

(B) The Joseph Danne Fund provides education and
financial support to orphans, to help build parochial schools
in needy parishes, and to provide interest-free loans to poor
parishes for the purpose of constructing churches. The orig-
inal bequest provided for the principal of the fund to
remain intact and 50% of the earnings to be reinvested to
become corpus of the Joseph Danne Foundation endow-
ment. The remaining 50% of earnings is to be used for char-
itable purposes at the discretion of the Archbishop.

(C) The Pastoral Office established the Archdiocesan
Endowment Fund to meet anticipated long-term needs of
the Pastoral Office. To the extent that unrestricted net
assets are not required to meet the operating or other
financial needs of the Pastoral Office, it is intended that the
accumulated earnings and principal of the fund will be
reinvested. In addition, the Archdiocesan Endowment
Fund includes other miscellaneous temporary and perma-
nently restricted net assets, the use of which is restricted
by the respective gift agreements. Activity in the
Archdiocesan Endowment Fund for fiscal year 2010 and
2009 is summarized as follows:

$3,387,394
—

3,387,394

$ —
3,288,594

$3,288,594

$1,882
—

$1,882

$3,389,276
3,288,594

$6,677,870

Unrestricted
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Permanently
Restricted Total 

Donor restricted endowment funds
Board designated endoment funds

Change in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2010:

$2,525,381
763,213

—
—

3,288,594

74,571
296,555
24,174

32,557
130,209

841

21,814
(24,331)

—

—
—
—

556,390

122,299
—
—
—

122,299

(626,892)
(87,665)
(5,164)

(27,405)
(747,126)

2,416,088
839,155
(7,681)

(27,405)
$ 3,220,157

$       —
—
—

1,882
1,882

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

364
1,659

—
2,023

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—

(3,905)
(3,905)

—
—
—

$ —

$ 782,841
2,433,585

—
170,968

3,387,394

—
—
—

32,557
130,209

842

—
—
—

3,323
14,933

—
181,864

—
—

1,785,966
—

1,785,966

——
—
—
—
—

782,841
2,597,193
1,785,966

189,224
$ 5,355,224

$ 3,308,222
3,196,798

—
172,850

6,677,870

74,571
296,555
24,174

65,114
260,418

1,683

3,687
16,592

—
742,794

122,299
—

1,785,966
—

1,908,265

(626,982)
(87,665)
(5,164)

(31,310)
(751,031)

3,198,929
3,436,348
1,778,285

161,819
$ 8,575,381

Unrestricted
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Permanently
Restricted Total 

Endowment net assets,
beginning of year
Seminary Burses Fund
Joseph Danne Fund
Maloney Trust
Pastoral Ministry

Investment return:
Seminary Burses Fund:

Interest income
Realized and unrealized 
Other

Joseph Danne Fund
Interest income
Realized and unrealized 
Other

Maloney trust
Interest income
Realized and unrealized 
Other

Pastoral Ministry
Interest income
Realized and unrealized 
Other

Total investment return
Contributions
Seminary Burses Fund
Joseph Danne Fund
Maloney trust
Pastoral Ministry
Total contributions
Expenditures of endowment
assets during year:
Seminary Burses Fund
Joseph Danne Fund
Maloney trust
Pastoral Ministry
Total expenditures
Endowment net assets,
end of year
Seminary Burses Fund
Joseph Danne Fund
Maloney trust
Pastoral Ministry

Net assets at beginning of year 
Contributions 
Net investment income (loss) 
Other income
Expenses 
Inter-fund transfers 
Net assets at end of year

2010
$26,018,126

2,379,963
4,476,495

459,414
(1,434,330)

430,543
$ 32,330,211

2009
$ 28,643,857

602,940
(2,139,334)

213,383
(1,350,880)

48,160
$26,018,126

NOTE K--ENDOWMENT DISCLOSURES
The Pastoral Office’s endowments consist of various

donor-restricted funds which are managed and controlled by
the Pastoral Office and were established for various donor
restricted purposes (see below and Note J). The net assets
associated with endowment funds are classified and report-
ed based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. All of the endowment funds held by the
Pastoral Office are managed and controlled by the Pastoral
Office in accordance with the following policies.

Interpretation of Relevant Law: The Finance Council of
the Archdiocese has interpreted the State Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (“SPMIFA”) as
requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original
gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment
funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As
a result of this interpretation, the Archdiocese classifies as
permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of
gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original
value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and
(c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument at the time the gift is made.

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endow-
ment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted
net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets
until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the
Archdiocese in a manner consistent with the standard of
prudence prescribed by SPMIFA.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2010:

$  (35,086)
3,255,243

$ 3,220,157

$ —
—
—

$5,355,224
—

$ 5,355,224

$5,320,138
3,255,243

$ 8,575,381

Unrestricted
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Permanently
Restricted Total 

Donor restricted endowment funds
Board designated endoment funds

Endowmwnt net assets composirion by type of fund as of June 30, 2009:
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Change in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2009:

$3,222,889
979,455

-
4,202,344

83,688
(532,088)

54,149

36,807
(237,203

-

-
-
-

(594,647)

146,977
1,154

-
148,131

(450,234)
(17,000)

-
(467,234)

2,525,381
763,213

-
$3,288,594

$              -
-

13,165
13,165

-
-
-

-
-
-

511
(3,348)
(1,661)

(4,498)

-
-
-
-

-
-

(6,785)
(6,785)

-
-

1,882
$     1,882

$ 782,841
2,633,984

197,863
3,614,688

-
-
-

36,803
(237,202)

-

4,597
(30,133)

(1,359)

(227,294)

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

782,841
2,433,585

170,968
$3,387,394

$4,005,730
3,613,439

211,028
7,830,197

83,688
(532,088)

54,149

73,610
(474,405)

-

5,108
(33,481)

(3,020)

(826,439)

146,977
1,154

-
148,131

(450,234)
(17,000)

(6,785)
(474,019)

3,308,222
3,196,798

172,850
$6,677,870

Unrestricted
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Permanently
Restricted Total 

Endowment net assets,
beginning of year
Seminary Burses Fund
Joseph Danne Fund
Pastoral Ministry

Investment return:
Seminary Burses Fund:

Interest income
Realized and unrealized 
Other

Joseph Danne Fund
Interest income
Realized and unrealized 
Other

Pastoral Ministry
Interest income
Realized and unrealized 

Other

Total investment return

Contributions
Seminary Burses Fund
Joseph Danne Fund
Pastoral Ministry
Total contributions
Expenditures of endowment
assets during year:
Seminary Burses Fund
Joseph Danne Fund
Pastoral Ministry
Total expenditures

Endowment net assets,
end of year
Seminary Burses Fund
Joseph Danne Fund
Pastoral Ministry

Funds with Deficiencies: From time to
time, the fair value of assets associated with
individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the
donor or SPMIFA requires the Archdiocese
to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. As
of June 30, 2010, there were $35,086 of
donor-restricted endowment funds with
fund deficiencies (none at June 30, 2009).

Return Objectives and Risk
Parameters: The Archdiocese has adopted
investment and spending policies for
endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding to programs
supported by its endowment while seeking
to maintain the purchasing power of the
endowment assets. Endowment assets
include those assets of donor-restricted
funds that the Archdiocese must hold in
perpetuity. Under this policy, as approved by
the governing body, the endowment assets
are invested with the combined objectives of
growth and current income. The asset allo-
cation policies (see below) reflect and are
consistent with the investment objectives
and risk tolerances expressed through the
investment policy.

Strategies Employed for Achieving
Objectives: To satisfy its long-term rate-of-
return objectives, the Archdiocese relies on
a total return strategy in which investment
returns are achieved through both capital
appreciation (realized and unrealized) and
current yield (interest and dividends). The
Archdiocese targets a diversified asset allo-
cation via investments managed by profes-
sional investment managers who have dis-
cretionary investment authority over
investment transactions subject to invest-
ment policies which are established and
periodically updated by the Pastoral Office.

Spending Policy and How the
Investment Objectives Relate to Spending
Policy: The Archdiocese has a policy of
appropriating for distribution each year
amounts up to, but not to exceed actual
investment performance for that year. Since
the Archdiocese limits appropriations to
actual investment performance, it feels that
this policy protects the purchasing power of
the endowment as outlined by donor specifi-
cations.

NOTE L --SUBSEQUENT EVENT
The bank debt owed by St. Mark the

Evangelist Church (“St. Mark”) was paid by
the Pastoral Office on October 29, 2010,
which resulted in the elimination of the
debt guarantee liability as discussed in
Note H. The amount paid by the Pastoral
Office on behalf of St. Mark was established
as a note receivable from St. Mark as part of
the PDLF.

Notes


